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THE COURT:  Mr. Vega? 

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  All right.  He's in a nursing home.  Is he -- does 

he have his mental faculties?  Is he competent to make decisions -- 

THE WITNESS:  I believe he's -- 

THE COURT:  -- and know what property he has and where 

his property is? 

THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  I believe he's competent.  He is -- his 

physical -- he has to be hand-carried to a truck and he had to be 

hand-carried -- 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

THE WITNESS:  -- to the notary.  His physical -- he's 

deteriorating rapidly. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

THE WITNESS:  I don't know mentally if he -- he seems 

cognitive, you know, he's very cognitive. 

THE COURT:  When was the last time you had occasion to 

talk to him, to assess his competence? 

THE WITNESS:  On the phone February, I want to say. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

THE WITNESS:  It just -- understood what was going on, 

understood that he had to sign, you know, the -- with the notary, you 

know, and just -- he's a nice guy.  So. 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

THE WITNESS:  You know. 
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THE COURT:  Appreciate that. 

Anything -- any follow-up by the attorneys, either side? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  Please.  Thank you.  

THE COURT:  All right.  

ADDITIONAL EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRAGONJE: 

Q What's the name of the agent you've been talking about, the 

repossession agent? 

A Oh, I don't know who he used as a repossession agent.  

Agent was -- general repossession agent, kind of people that do that for 

a living. 

Q And -- well, who contacted the agent, then? 

A Well, I imagine Mr. Vega may have contacted them. 

Q Could it have been Mr. Foust? 

A I don't think it would have been Mr. Foust. 

Q It's possible, though? 

MR. MAZUR:  Objection.  Speculation, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Well, do you have any -- 

THE WITNESS:  I have no knowledge that -- 

THE COURT:  Yeah, that's speculative. 

THE WITNESS:  -- Mr. Foust contacted an agent to have 

these -- 

BY MR. BRAGONJE: 

Q You have no idea who contacted the agent? 

A I have no idea.  I -- the normal -- in the normal course of 
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events, if I had interest in a -- security interest in a car, I would go to 

somebody and say, Here's my security interest.  I'd go through the 

process of doing that and I repossess it.  I have the car taken.  And I'd 

have it moved as little distance as possible while I determine what I 

wanted to do with it, whether I wanted to ship it or sell it or take it. 

If it was a car of, you know, normal car, normal DBS value, I'd 

take it to a public auction.  I'd register it and get whatever I could back 

out of it. 

Q And you say you haven't spoken with Mr. Vega since February 

of this year; is that right? 

A That would be right. 

Q So when you -- so you've only been meeting with Mr. Foust to 

make the decisions related to this matter; isn't that correct? 

A No, the decisions were made.  The decisions were clearly 

made that when I first showed up here, that all I was going to do is say I 

have the power of attorney, Mr. Vega has the cars, he has the titles, and 

this is for the information of both parties.  So we're first in line. 

Q Do you ever speak with Mr. Detwiler? 

A Yeah, I just saw him in the hallway. 

Q Before that, have you spoken with him? 

A Yeah.  I've known Mr. Detwiler for a number of years and 

originally, to the best of my knowledge, Eddie was brought into Harry 

Hildibrand to facilitate real estate trades.  And I actually was looking at 

investing in the REO lists going back to 2006, '07, and '08 on foreclosed 

properties.  It was a robust business.  
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Q Before talking with Mr. Detwiler in the hall today, when is the 

last time you spoke with him? 

A He asked me about three weeks ago to help facilitate some 

investment for his holdings out of the country in the Honduras.  He's 

looking for some millions of dollars. 

Q So Mr. Detwiler's your business associate as well? 

A I get a -- I don't do -- I have not done any business with Eddie 

Detwiler.  I've known Eddie Detwiler as a successful broker here in Las 

Vegas.  In my business I get enormous amount of referrals and inquiries 

from people that are seeking funds to start up a business to turn around 

a business to inject capital into it.  It's primary to how I make my living. 

Q How many deals or transactions have you done with 

Mr. Detwiler? 

A None successfully to my mind. 

Q None successfully? 

A Yes. 

Q So you -- how many inquiries has he made with you? 

A Over the years, I've watched him develop three or four 

different portfolios of opportunities, but was never able to sew together 

the proper investment group. 

Q And have you ever spoken with Harry Hildibrand Jr., the 

person? 

A No, I have not spoken with Harry Hildibrand Jr. 

Q Have you ever spoken to anyone with the last name 

Hildibrand? 
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A Many years ago Harry Hildibrand Sr. 

Q And what was the nature of your communications with Harry 

Hildibrand Sr.? 

A I would -- I might have been buying a car.  I recall buying from 

Harry Hildibrand a 2007 C70 Volvo for my daughter.  And, you know, it 

was in their inventory, it happened to be in Las Vegas, and so I bought 

that car. 

Q Is Mr. Detwiler currently -- 

MR. MAZUR:  Your Honor, object.  This goes beyond direct 

and redirect and -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  This is showing the inside nature of all of 

this. 

THE COURT:  Yeah, I think this is going beyond the scope of 

the extra questions that I had. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  So why don't you ask one last question. 

MR. MAZUR:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

BY MR. BRAGONJE: 

Q It's possible you'll do business with Mr. Detwiler in the future in 

connection with this Honduras venture, isn't it? 

A Not really. 

MR. MAZUR:  Objection.  Speculation. 

THE WITNESS:  It's not possible.   

THE COURT:  Well, it's not speculative to find out what his 

intent is.  All right. 
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So go ahead. 

THE WITNESS:  I've looked at the deal several times.  It's a 

very, very difficult package for me to put together. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

THE WITNESS:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Mazur, you get re-redirect based upon my 

question.  

MR. MAZUR:  Your Honor, I don't have any further questions 

of Mr. Larkin. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Then Mr. Larkin, you may step down.  

Thank you very much for your time.  Make sure you gather all your 

belongings up there. 

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  And have safe travels back to California. 

THE WITNESS:  I appreciate it.  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  All right. 

THE WITNESS:  I'm getting as far as the Venetian for the 

agent summit.  The car business, I'm going to be at. 

THE COURT:  Any further witnesses, Mr. Mazur? 

MR. MAZUR:  No, Your Honor.  That's all. 

THE COURT:  All right.  So this concludes the evidentiary 

portion of the contempt proceedings against Mr. Foust. 

What's the parties' intention with regarding to closing 

arguments?  I would prefer that I get brief closing arguments from both 
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sides, like, five minutes.  And then I would entertain more detailed 

written statements and before I could make a decision on contempt, I 

would also need an attorney affidavit in support of contempt from Baker 

Boyer.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh. 

THE COURT:  As a prerequisite to a jurisdiction of the Court 

to enter any contempt order. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Would Your Honor not accept -- I think we 

submitted one with our original motion. 

THE COURT:  Oh, with your original order to show cause? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  Yes. 

THE COURT:  All right.  I'll take a look at it.  So that's all that 

we need there other than closing arguments. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah. 

THE COURT:  All right? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  So you want to take a few minutes now and 

refresh my memory on -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  -- whatever facts I need to know? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes, thank you. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Let's actually have Mr. Mazur go first. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh, yes.  Of course. 

THE COURT:  Since they are the party that -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  Yes. 
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THE COURT:  -- has the Order to Show Case verdict. 

CLOSING ARGUMENT FOR THE DEFENDANT 

MR. MAZUR:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

And, Your Honor, I'll be extremely brief in majority to the 

actual written brief that's filed, the supplemental brief. 

THE COURT:  Yes. 

MR. MAZUR:  With the Order to Show Cause, it was brought 

for the purpose that -- in a claim that defendant was not complying with 

the Court's order of findings of fact, conclusions of law, that Defendant 

and Harry Hildibrand LLC failed to turn over the vehicles or the assets or 

identity the vehicles and the assets. 

We've gone through, on the list of 20 that were actually 

identified, and we provided on four of the vehicles, we provided the 

exact location where they could be picked up in California.  There's no 

reasons why they cannot be retrieved at this point in time or 

repossessed at this point in time. 

The Court has previously ordered that on the 20 vehicles that 

title is, shall be deemed vested with the plaintiff.  So technically it's their 

vehicles and they can have access to them at any point in time, even 

behind a gated community. 

With the other 16 vehicles, one vehicle is the motor coach 

which Plaintiffs repossessed in 2018 and subsequently sold in 2018, 

regardless of the fact there was not proper notice of the execution or 

notice of attachment that was done.  But we'll leave that to a separate 

day. 
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But the defendant has full -- provided his full cooperation.  

He's provided locations to the best of his knowledge of what happened 

to the vehicles, where they went to on each of the 16, the ones that were 

titled to Harry Hildibrand and then subsequently either sold off at the 

auction or to the private parties, Mr. Kuck, and a couple of the vehicles.  

And then the vehicles that actually were repossessed, which is new 

knowledge that we just learned as far as repossessions, on those seven 

vehicles, it was identified by Mr. Larkin and Mr. Vega on the security 

interest. 

But he's provided his full cooperation.  He's shown up -- 

THE COURT:  It's concerning that it takes so long to get 

information that probably should have been provided in earlier 

proceedings. 

MR. MAZUR:  I understand.  And I -- 

THE COURT:  We've been -- we meaning I've been listening 

to a lot of argument and we've all gone through a lot of proceedings to 

find out, you know, where the cars are and what interest Harry 

Hildibrand has and what has happened to his interest.  And a lot of the 

stuff I learned today is new, which is information that someone should 

have been presenting to me earlier. 

MR. MAZUR:  And I understand.  The first time I was made 

aware if it, I appeared April 1st, just six, seven weeks ago -- 

THE COURT:  Not blaming you.  

MR. MAZUR:  -- and -- 

THE COURT:  Just saying the information's been dripping in 
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slow. 

MR. MAZUR:  Right.  We cut to the chase and went straight to 

the list.  And at that first hearing we went through and we said we'd 

provide declarations on the exact locations and we tried to -- 

THE COURT:  All right. 

MR. MAZUR:  -- go as quickly as we possibly could without 

delay in providing additional information on specifics.  And we're still 

willing to help and participate to the extent that we can at this point in 

time, Your Honor. 

But we're not dodging the court order.  He's providing his 

compliance.  He simply can't turn over something that he doesn't have 

possession or control over, doesn't know where's at -- where the 

vehicle's at.  I mean, these are transactions that go back to 2005 on the 

vehicles and through an entity that he does not have control over.  

Mr. Foust only has 1 percent interest in the company.  And the balance 

resides by the three children of Mr. Harry Hildibrand, including Junior 

and the two others that each hold a 33 and 33 percent interest.  

Mr. Foust does not have any ownership or control or manager 

of Stardust LLC and any of the other entities, he simply doesn't have 

control of the vehicles.  He's complied with the findings of fact, and 

complied with the order to the extent that he can.   

The titles are already transferred over, so those vehicles are 

legal titled to the plaintiffs now.  And we -- my client does not know the 

location. 

But with that, we would rest and you've heard the testimony of 
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Mr. Vega's representative and also Mr. Detwiler, as far as there's no 

ownership, no control, no agreements, no side deals.  And that he 

simply does not own any vehicles. 

Thank you. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  Appreciate that. 

MR. MAZUR:  And with that, we do request that [indiscernible] 

as well. 

THE COURT:  Well, I'm not sure what I'm going to do till I hear 

all sides and you finish the argument and look at my notes further.  

Thank you. 

MR. MAZUR:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Appreciate your argument and position. 

All right.  Mr. Bragonje, your turn. 

REBUTTAL ARGUMENT FOR PLAINTIFF 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Your Honor, the evidence has been 

dripping in because this is being made up as we go along.  Every time 

we come in here, the road points back to Mr. Foust.  We are here today 

and we're hearing for the first time about this Ron Vega connection.  I'm 

not convinced this is even a real person, because who gets up here and 

gives a testimony, a 15-year associate of Mr. Foust and Mr. Detwiler.  

This is not a disinterested party.   

This -- if this were a legitimate foreclosure, as they claim, they 

attempt to introduce nothing into evidence, by the way, if it were a 

legitimate foreclosure, we would have heard about this years ago.  I 

deposed Mr. Foust twice.  I deposed Mr. Detwiler once.  We had two 
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trials.  Never have we heard that.  

And that's because it's being made up as we go.  Every time 

we dig deeper, we find Mr. Foust's fingers on what's going on.  I think 

the Hagerty subpoena that we talked about in this proceeding, it's almost 

like cumulative evidence.  I almost feel silly talking about it, but I think it's 

important, because this is what I did.  My client is a banker and he said, 

you know, we've heard that there's this insurance company out there 

that specializes in classic cars.  Why don't we send them a subpoena 

and see if they've got anything on Mr. Foust?  

So that's what I did.  And I sent it to the state of Delaware.  I 

got a response from an attorney who said, This is Mr. Foust's file.  And 

in that file was a -- the same list that we saw in the bankruptcy and there 

was, you know, they dispute it and they deny it, I understand that.  But I 

think the Court has to weigh who's telling the truth?  A guy who is facing 

going to jail or a corporate attorney in Delaware who's got no dog in this 

fight? 

I agree, the evidence has been dripping in, and that's because 

they're making it up as we go along. 

If Mr. Vega really had this interest that is claimed, we would 

have heard about that years ago.  I submit it's all a fraud, it's all false, 

and I think that we are dealing with people that only want to participate in 

litigation when they're winning. 

This is what their attorney said in the bankruptcy proceedings.  

I think this is telling.  This is what their bankruptcy attorney said about 

this court.  If you'll bear with me here. 
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This is James Laissez in the bankruptcy court.  This is what -- 

they were talking about their motivation for filing bankruptcy. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Because we have a judge -- 

That's you. 

THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- that has indicated he is willing to violate 

the U.S. Constitution, the contract clause of the U.S. Constitution 

and retitle abrogate a purchase money contract and so that was the 

reason for filing it. 

Now we are exploring other alternatives in Nevada and it may 

be that we will be able to leave the bankruptcy realm and proceed 

there. 

These people -- 

THE COURT:  I remember reading that before. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- they don't respect what's going on here.  

If they did, if this were real, we would have heard about it years ago.  

There's got to be an end, there's got to be an end, and I submit that 

these are people that won't take it seriously unless they are imprisoned. 

And so we're asking that they be imprisoned or that they pay 

the value of the cars listed in the bankruptcy. 

THE COURT:  What's -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Both. 

THE COURT:  What's concerning to me, and I need to look 

into this further, is that Harry Hildibrand did appear in this proceeding 
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and for purposes of identifying and explaining what interest it had in the 

vehicles.  And they had attorneys that came and represented Harry 

Hildibrand.  And they didn't have Harry Jr. Appear or provide any 

evidence or testimony.  They didn't have Harry Hildibrand Jr.'s daughters 

come, the only person they put forward was Mr. Detwiler.  

And so Mr. Detwiler says he's just a figurehead, but he's the 

only one that anyone's ever put forward to show who's controlling this 

company other than Mr. Foust, who has -- claims to have a 1 percent. 

So, you know, obviously, Harry Hildibrand, somebody's 

controlling it and I have to assume it's the persons that have come 

forward to appear on behalf of Harry Hildibrand.   

So that's my concern so far.  And I have to go back and look 

at my prior orders, but -- on my prior findings.  All right? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  So -- 

THE COURT:  I'm going to look at my prior orders, I'm going 

to look at all the affidavits that have been submitted in this matter.  I'm 

going to look at the statements made by Harry Hildibrand's attorneys, 

make it -- I'm going to look at the statements, any admissions or 

statements made by Mr. Foust's attorneys.  And then we'll decide where 

to go in terms of the contempt proceedings.  All right. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Last thing is I need to know how quickly -- and I 

want you guys to do this super quickly -- get in, if you want any further 

argument to me on these proceedings.  I'm not requiring it.  I'm giving 

you an opportunity to do that.  But I want this done no later than 
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Monday, unless you both stipulate for further time.  But we need to put 

an end to this. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah, I don't think we need further 

argument.  Unless Your Honor has something that Your Honor's really 

curious about. 

THE COURT:  There's nothing that I need to know.  There's 

some legal issues that I still need to consider that were presented by 

Mr. Mazur in his prior motion.  So. 

MR. MAZUR:  And, Your Honor, I think if we do submit the 

briefs, there's additional questions that need argument or the Court 

would like to hear argument, then we can come back a -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, what I'm saying is unless Your Honor 

wants additional briefs, I mean, I have written -- 

THE COURT:  You've written a lot, right. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  We've written a lot. 

THE COURT:  I can't imagine what anybody would say that I 

haven't already heard.  But I limited you to five minutes -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I would rather not do -- 

THE COURT:  -- closing argument now.  I didn't want to cut 

you off if you wanted more to say.   

So Mr. Mazur, if you want the opportunity -- what's today, 

Wednesday? 

THE CLERK:  No, Tuesday. 

THE COURT:  Today's Tuesday?  I can give you until Monday 

to provide any written closing argument. 
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MR. MAZUR:  Is Monday a holiday?  Could we do -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  It is. 

THE COURT:  Oh. 

MR. MAZUR:  Could we do Tuesday? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I've got a -- 

THE COURT:  Tuesday. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  You know -- 

THE COURT:  It doesn't look like we need to move faster than 

that as to the seven cars that Mr. Vega has.  Appears that nothing's 

going to happen to them until August. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  And I have to tell the Court, I've got a big -- 

this is why it is so frustrating for me that this has been continued so long.  

And by the way, Mr. Foust wasn't even supposed to testify today unless 

he had paid a fine for not showing up on Friday, which was going to be 

part of these contempt proceedings. 

THE COURT:  It was.  And I'll -- I mean, I had made my orders 

on this case and then the reason why we're having further proceedings 

is you did an application for to show cause, and I think the Court's been 

moving as quickly as the Court could in trying to -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, absolutely. 

THE COURT:  -- resolve your matter other than couple of 

continuances that have been the result of Mr. Foust. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, I've never asked for more time.  Of 

course, the Court needs time to digest things.  They have asked for 

more time.  And what I'm driving at is this: 
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THE COURT:  Yeah. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I'm going to be out of the country beginning 

Tuesday.  I really can't -- it would be very difficult for me to bring 

someone else up to speed in my law firm.  I'm the only one who's ever 

worked on this. 

THE COURT:  Well, you don't need to respond to the closing 

that -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- Mr. Foust's attorney is going to provide the 

Court. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  I have everything that you've written. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes. 

THE COURT:  You've written -- we could probably, you know, 

publish it in two full books. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  Right. 

THE COURT:  Maybe more than that.  So I have enough 

writing from you. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Mazur hasn't been in this case that long.  

He might need a few more days to digest everything.  The burden is 

really on Mr. Foust to explain why my orders haven't been complied 

with.  So I'll give the last word to Mr. Foust and his counsel. 

Anything you want to provide to me?  No new evidence, but 

you can have argument basically summing up everything and whatever 
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you're going to file on Tuesday.  Okay? 

MR. MAZUR:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  And then I'm going to have a quick decision on 

this by the middle of next week.  Okay? 

MR. MAZUR:  Very good, Your Honor. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Is there any -- well, we were here on 

Friday.  They were supposed to pay my costs for showing up Friday and 

Mr. Foust not being here.  Is there any resolution on that issue? 

THE COURT:  Well, part of what I'm considering is, you know, 

if there is contempt, the Court has various remedies it can impose.  I 

mean, the Court can always, you know, if it's still a contempt, the Court 

can order that Mr. Foust to be incarcerated until the cars are turned 

over.  The Court has the right to do a civil penalty of $500.  The Court 

can do both.  The Court can also impose sanctions under EDCR 7.60, 

which allows the Court to impose sanctions for multiplying or prolonging 

the proceedings or engaging in proceedings that have been vexatious or 

harassing.   

And one of the things the Court can do for violation of 

EDCR 7.60 is award costs and attorneys' fees to the party that has had 

to endure, you know, any vexatious or harassing activity.  So those are 

the remedies that would be available to Baker Boyer in the event the 

Court found that there was any contempt or any harassing, vexatious 

activity.  All right? 

MR. MAZUR:  And, Your Honor -- 

THE COURT:  So your request -- 
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MR. MAZUR: -- if I may, on -- 

THE COURT:  -- I know you requested before attorneys' fees 

and costs.  I can decide that once I receive -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  -- Mr. Mazur's brief.  And then the other 

matters that I've agreed to review. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  Thank you. 

MR. MAZUR:  And, Your Honor, as it relates to the attorneys' 

fees from Friday, we didn't even finish Mr. Detwiler's testimony on 

Friday, so we wouldn't not even made it to Mr. Foust's testimony on last 

Friday.  We did run out of time.  It was about an hour and 20 minutes 

that we did proceed on, and that's why we're here today as well. 

THE COURT:  That's true.  Part of the reason I, you know, I 

could have shuffled other things around.  But part -- one of the reasons 

why I continued is because -- well, you know this.  One of the reasons I 

continued is because we didn't have Mr. Foust and we weren't going to 

have him until Tuesday. 

MR. MAZUR:  Right. 

THE COURT:  So the reason we didn't finish isn't based on 

my schedule.  I would have rearranged my schedule if Mr. Foust had 

been present. 

MR. MAZUR:  Understand. 

THE COURT:  I accommodated him.  All right. 

MR. MAZUR:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.  
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So this matter is adjourned.  And we'll see where it goes on 

Tuesday night.  All right? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

[Proceeding concluded at 11:11 a.m.] 

/ / / 
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Las Vegas, Nevada, Monday, December 23, 2019 

 

[Case called at 9:25 a.m.] 

THE COURT:  Baker Boyer v. James Foust, A-760779. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Good morning, Your Honor.  John 

Bragonje of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie, on behalf of the Plaintiff, 

and judgment creditor, Baker Boyer National Bank.   

THE COURT:  Good morning.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Good morning.  

THE COURT:  And I know this case has been going on for a 

while.  It's been difficult for your client to first locate the motorcoach, 

find out  who had an interest in the motorcoach, and get that person 

served with a writ, and then bring that person before the Court, and then 

have hearing on that.  And then the Court issued an order, an then didn't 

comply, and there was an order to show cause, and a further hearing, 

and then some time to draft the findings.   

And then there were some attempts to attach the motorhome 

to get secure possession, and finally there was possession secured on 

the motorhome, and then your client proceeded with the  next phase, 

which is to attach and garnish, serve a writ to obtain a right to possess 

the classic cars.   

MR. BRAGONJE:   Thank you for all your work, Your Honor.   

THE COURT:  I just --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  There's been  a lot of work on the Court's 

part, and we thank you.  
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THE COURT:  No, no, no.  You know, it's -- but thank you for 

saying that.   

And then there was the -- and then the same kind of effort to 

get an order on classic cars, and then there was nothing turned over, 

which led to an order to show cause, and an appearance, and an 

evidentiary hearing, and a new order.  So, roughly, that's the history of 

this case, and  I think it's taken probably a year and three-quarters, or 

something like that, right?  

MR. BRAGONJE:  It sounds right, yeah.  

THE COURT:  So and just part of my normal review, after a 

warrant for arrest is issued, I looked at all the paperwork again, it's a 

pretty serious thing arresting somebody.  And I did, obviously, what I 

thought was a pretty thorough review when I issued the warrant.  

Usually having the warrant issued is enough to get the person to 

comply; it didn't happen here. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  And then it was out for service, and I did 

another review of the paperwork.  And I do have a concern, and let me 

explain why, and as we go through this, if you can tell me if I'm missing 

something --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  -- please let me know.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  Because I want to make sure that, you know, 

we're crystal clear.  All right.  So --  
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MR. BRAGONJE:  So we're talking about the warrant for Mr. 

Detweiler, in particular? 

THE COURT:  Let's just talk about Mr. Detweiler.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  So looking first at the law, NRS 31.100, a writ of 

attachment has to be served on the person to be bound, and then the 

Court has jurisdiction over that person, to issue an order that the 

property -- well, there has to be a subpoena served on that person, and 

maybe there's other ways to get jurisdiction, we'll go through that.  

I know the writ was served on Mr. Foust, and the company, 

and Foust, we certainly had jurisdiction over Mr. Foust, and I don't know 

the circumstances under which that happened.  Then Harry Hildibrand 

made an appearance into the action, I think as part of motion to 

intervene, and also pursuant to a claim against the property.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.   

THE COURT:  And there was actually findings of the Court, 

that the Court not only had jurisdiction over Foust, but Harry Hildibrand, 

and Harry Hildibrand and Foust were alter egos.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.   

THE COURT:  And I didn't see in my file any indication that 

either -- well, going back to 31.100, it says that the person whom the 

creditor believes has control over the property has to be served with a 

subpoena, and you can also name them in a complaint, and then have a 

complaint and summons served on the person, but this will require, in 

the alternative, that you have a subpoena served.  
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I don't think either of those were done.  Was a subpoena -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  As to --  

THE COURT:  -- served, personally, on Mr. Detweiler?  I know 

various other things were, and we'll get to that, but --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I'm thinking about that.  

THE COURT:  I didn't see it in the record, but if it has 

happened, I need proof, there's a lot of things filed in this case.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  And maybe my --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't --  

THE COURT:  -- law clerk is checking this too, if there's ever a 

subpoena? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't recall -- let's see here.  

 Mr. Detweiler, personally, I don't recall a subpoena being served.  I do 

believe he received an order to show cause. 

THE COURT:  Well, let's get to that.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't think -- yeah, I don't, on  

Mr. Detweiler, personally, I don't believe he was served with a subpoena.  

THE COURT:  All right.  So then --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  To my memory I don't recall that.   

THE COURT:  Right.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I suppose I would have been the one -- I 

mean, I think Harry Hildibrand, for whom Mr. Foust was a 
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representative -- 

THE COURT:  So there are some findings --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- was served with a subpoena.   

THE COURT:  There are some findings, March 2018 dealt with 

a motorcoach, and then there was order on Harry Hildibrand's third party 

claim, that was in April 2018.   

All right.  Then the main order of that precipitates all of this, 

is the order of January 9th, 2019.  In this order, at the first page, it talks 

about -- well, first of all this order names the Defendant judgment Debtor 

is James Patterson Foust, individually and his marital community.   

And then in the findings of fact, conclusions of law, and final 

judgment, it references prior findings against Harry Hildibrand, and then 

indicates, it says, you're asking the Court resolve Harry Hildibrand's 

claim of ownership over certain vehicles that the bank seeks to levy, and 

execute against, to satisfy a judgment against judgment Debtor, and 

Defendant, James Foust, for approximately one million.  

So at least in the findings, the findings recognize the request 

to get a judgment against Harry Hildibrand and Foust to turn over the 

cars.  But then on page -- all right.  Then we move forward to page 4, 

paragraph 6, it says:  "Although originally a non-party, by invoking 

31.070, Harry Hildibrand subjected itself to this Court's jurisdiction.   

I haven't seen anything on Detweiler, yet.  And then at the 

bottom of paragraph 6 it says, "This is an evidentiary hearing under 

31.070.  The parties agree that this evidentiary hearing may proceed 

before the bank has levied upon the subject cars.  So the parties, again, 
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the way this is written up that page, would be Foust and Harry 

Hildibrand.   

And then you move forward, it says "Harry Hildibrand and 

Foust are in privity," that's paragraph 11.  On page 18, conclusions of 

law, paragraph 1, the Court has jurisdiction over the parties.  It doesn't 

specify Mr. Detweiler.  And then you see paragraph 2, where it says:  

"The Court enters judgment in favor of the bank, and against Harry 

Hildibrand and Mr. Foust, and then it goes on to say, including all 

persons or entities claiming an ownership in Harry Hildibrand; and then I 

crossed that part out, and initialed it.   

So that would be persons claiming ownership.  I was saying, 

no, it wouldn't include debt, because it was just Harry Hildibrand.  I know 

Detweiler, at that point in time, was believed to be and subsequently 

found to believe, a managing member of Harry Hildibrand.   

But at this point in time I believe Detweiler had only 

appeared in this proceeding, and provided an affidavit, up to this point in 

time, as a witness.  And I don't think there's anything up through that 

point of time that would give notice to Mr. Detweiler, that he's actually a 

party.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  I would agree,  I don't know, and I 

don't think Mr. Detweiler has ever been a named party in this.  

THE COURT:  Well, I'm trying to find out.  You do get to 

referencing Mr. Detweiler, on page 22 of this order; this is under the 

"conclusions."  Page 22, paragraph 29, says:   

"Mr. Foust and Harry Hildibrand, and then any other 
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respective agents, employees, affiliates (including without 

limitation, Mr. Detweiler, and Stardust Classic, and any of its 

agents) are order on penalty of contempt to deliver up, 

surrender possession of, and turn over to the bank, promptly, 

all cars identified in Exhibits A and B, with any cost or 

expense involved in delivery to the bank, to be borne by Mr. 

Foust, and/or HH." 

My concern up to this point is that Mr. Detweiler could have 

reasonably believed that he wasn't named as a party, he had only been a 

witness.  The evidentiary hearing that led to this order on January 9th, 

was only an evidentiary hearing as to the parties; because that's what I 

read earlier, and it specifically referenced that HH subjected it to -- 

objected itself to jurisdiction.  

Nowhere does it say Mr. Detweiler has subjected himself to 

jurisdiction, and yet, you know, kind of in the middle, this is on page 22, 

it's ordering him to turn over any cars in his possession.  Not only is it 

kind of, and I hate to use the word, it's not hidden, but it's not hidden at 

all, it's plainly stated in that paragraph, that just given the context of the 

rest of this, the beginning of, he might have come to two different 

conclusions. 

Either, number 1, he had no obligations under here, or 

number 2, he had an obligation to turn anything over that he had, or he 

could have thought,  number 3,  the duty was on Harry Hildibrand to try 

get them from him and turn them over, and he didn't have any actual 

obligation to the Court.   
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I think that one is less likely, and more likely it's an order that 

says he's got to turn it over.  I'm not sure if I had jurisdiction over him to 

actually issue the order, because at this point in time I don't think -- well, 

he wasn't named as party to the complaint.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Correct.  

THE COURT:  I've seen, you know, complaints amended to 

have claims against a garnishee, or I'm not sure how else it's done, but 

I've seen that.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  So he's not a party to the complaint.  He hasn't 

stipulated to jurisdiction; he hasn't filed anything with the Court in which 

he's making a claim.  He provided an affidavit, which was in support of 

Foust and Harry Hildibrand, but he also wasn't served with a subpoena, 

as far as I can tell; I think you'll check on that.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  I --  

THE COURT:   So I don't -- at this point in time I don't know if 

I had jurisdiction over him to issue an order.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Order to show cause, you mean? 

THE COURT:  An order that he -- we're not at the order to 

show cause yet -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  --  we're at the --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I agree.  I think that he -- I think that he's 

appeared in these proceedings purely in a representative capacity.  Our 

work over the years has produced evidence that I think is uncontroverted 
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that he is really the only -- he and Mr. Foust are really the only people 

behind Harry Hildibrand.  So Mr. Foust was certainly a party, Harry 

Hildibrand was certainly a party, they stipulated to jurisdiction.  

THE COURT:  Well, Harry Hildibrand, so I --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  LLC, I should say.  

THE COURT:  Right.  

MR. BRAGONJE:   I mean, it's confusing, because it's a 

person's name, I'm speaking about the entity.  So unquestionably those 

two people are subject to this course of jurisdiction.  Mr. Foust, he's the 

originally named debtor, and Harry Hildibrand, because it invoked the 

third-party claims statute.   

It came into this Court and said, you know, we're the ones 

that own the motorcoach and all the classy cars, and then this Court said, 

"Well, there's a statutory proceeding where we have an evidentiary 

hearing and we sort out who this stuff really belongs to." 

And when Harry Hildibrand invoked that statute, and I 

apologize I don't have it in front of me, I'm sure it's in all the orders.   

THE COURT:  No, that's good.  Because --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't have it --  

THE COURT:  -- you didn't expect me --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- on the tip of my tongue. 

THE COURT:  -- to talk about all this.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  So when Harry Hildibrand invoked 

that statute, and we have on record, and I believe we've got the citations 

and the order, they said, "We accept jurisdiction."  At that time they were 
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represented by the Holland & Hart --  

THE COURT:  Harry Hildibrand.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Harry Hildibrand LLC.   They were 

represented by the Holland & Hart Law Firm.  So what I think the Court is 

saying is, well,  how can Mr. Detweiler effectively go to jail for Harry 

Hildibrand? 

THE COURT:  Well --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  And I think that I addressed that.  I think 

the only --  

THE COURT:  Can I interrupt for one second --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Of course, of course --  

THE COURT:  -- if you don't mind? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- yeah, yeah.  Yes.  Please, please.  

THE COURT:  So I don't see us -- I don't see either the Court 

or Baker Boyer accomplishing, or doing the same thing that was done 

with Mr. Foust.  And let me just set forth three things, and then I'll let you 

get back to your explanation --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Please.  I'm here -- 

THE COURT:  -- which is very helpful. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- to do your will, yes.   

THE COURT:  Well, Mr. Foust was named as a party,  

Mr. Detweiler wasn't named as a party.  Mr. Foust was found specifically 

to be the alter ego of Harry Hildibrand, Mr. Detweiler wasn't found to be 

an alter ego.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Correct.  
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THE COURT:  Harry Hildibrand participated in the litigation 

such that the Court accepted jurisdiction over him, that's why them filing 

a claim.  The Court never issued anything indicating it accepted 

jurisdiction over Mr. Detweiler.  And finally, Mr. Detweiler never 

stipulated to jurisdiction.  So I think we've dealt with Mr. Foust a lot 

differently than we dealt with Mr. Detweiler. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I agree. 

THE COURT:  And that gives me concern, because, yes, I did 

issue an order commanding him, on page 22, paragraph 29, to turn over 

the cars.  I did certainly command Mr. Detweiler to do that, and he didn't 

do that.  So he violated the Court's order.  But was it a lawful order, and 

if it's not a lawful order, it would be a gross breach of this Court's 

obligation to have him arrested; so I'm concerned. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  Well, I think the --  

THE COURT:  There's ways to cure it, going forward, but that 

would --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Sure.  

THE COURT:  -- probably take another month. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  We are willing to do whatever the Court 

wishes us to do.  I am of the opinion that there is no problem with 

jurisdiction.  The basis for incarcerating Mr. Detweiler is his contempt of 

Court.  Ultimately, we're talking about a limited liability company here.  

A limited liability company cannot be incarcerated, it's a diacritical 

person, it's an idea.   

Corporations, any entity, a corporation, or a limited liability 
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company, when they're found to be in contempt of Court must, by logic 

be -- those orders must be enforced against the actors who motivate the 

company.  And that's why in our most recent order to the Court, that 

established the contempt of Mr. Detweiler, personally; and this page 15 

of the Court's signed order -- 

THE COURT:  Right. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- we go through that and we provide the 

Court with authorities for the proposition that companies are punished 

through their representative.   

So I think the basis for incarcerating Mr. Detweiler is not that 

he was ever, or ever will be, ever was, or ever will be a named party in 

these proceedings.  The basis for incarcerating him is he is the 

representative of a company that has thumbed its nose for years at this 

Court.   

THE COURT:  Right.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  And if these Court's orders are to be 

enforced, they have to be enforced against the company's 

representatives.  You can't put an idea in jail, you've got to put a 

company's representatives in jail, and that's why we -- I was sensitive -- 

THE COURT:  Right.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- to this issue, as well, and so I spent some 

time --  

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- researching it.   

THE COURT:  Okay.   
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MR. BRAGONJE:  And that's why I put it in -- so it's page 15, 

this is -- pardon me, here.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  This is --  

THE COURT:  The last order issued by the Court. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  You signed it on the 16th of 

December.  I don't know when it was filed, but probably the 16th or 17th of 

December; and this is page 15 of that order.  And I'm looking at 

paragraph 23, and I really think this is the law anywhere in our nation.  I 

think it's the law in Nevada, I think it's the law in Hawaii, the law in 

Florida --  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- everywhere.   

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  "The officers or agents of a company are  

guilty of a contempt if, and they may be attached and 

punished therefore.  Thus corporate officers, or corporate 

agents are punishable for contempt, where they have 

knowledge or notice of an order directed to the company."  

Which Mr. Detweiler certainly had, "and they are responsible 

for the company's violation thereof."   

THE COURT:  What's the cite to that? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  So this is -- that is, In re Waters of Humbolt 

River, that's 118 Nev. 903.   

THE COURT:  Brandon, can you pull that for me, please, 118 

PA00551



 

- 15 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

Nev. 903.  Does it reference a statute? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  No.  And I've got some other citations in 

that same paragraph.  

THE COURT:  What's your position on whether I would --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  And the following --  

THE COURT:  -- need to give notice to Mr. Detweiler, that the 

purpose of the evidentiary hearing is to find out if he is the alter ego of 

the company; would he need notice of that?  Because I know the main 

point of the evidentiary hearing is, where are the cars, and who owns the 

cars?  I think that was the --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right. 

THE COURT:  -- expressed purpose of the evidentiary 

hearing.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  No,  I don't think --  

THE COURT:  What about an alter ego? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't think that's a necessary -- alter ego 

is never anything the bank asked for.  We're not asking for a ruling, that 

Mr. Detweiler is the same thing as Harry Hildibrand.  I think the basis for 

the contempt order, and therefore the warrant for his arrest, is that he 

was the only managing member.  He testified to that in two places.  He 

was in front --  

THE COURT:  He did, right.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  He was in front of this Court and he said 

that, and then in the bankruptcy proceedings he said, in effect, I'm 

paraphrasing, "I'm the guy, I get stuff done for Harry Hildibrand."  So the 
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idea of  holding him in contempt, is that we've already got Mr. Foust, he 

won't turn over the cars.  And then we got Harry Hildibrand, and they 

refused to obey the Court's orders.  And then you've got Mr. Detweiler, 

who says, I'm the guy, I am Harry Hildibrand, I'm the managing member. 

If the Court's orders are to be enforced there's got to be a force against a 

representative.   

THE COURT:  That was my thinking --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  -- and then I took another look.  No, I mean, 

back to the geniuses of the authority --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh.  

THE COURT:  -- which is NRS 31.100.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh.  

THE COURT:  And that one says, I mean, to summarize, I'm 

going to give it to you in a second.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  Thank you.  

THE COURT:  It basically says, if you have a person, and I 

think you're interpreting "person" to be broad enough to include the LLC 

and its controlling entities --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Sure.   

THE COURT:  -- right?  But it says, if there is a person that 

you believe, or have reason to believe, controls the property that you're 

seeking to obtain.  So if you have a person that you reasonably believe 

has the property, then you may subpoena that person to come forward 

and be examined; and then, the Court may issue such orders as may be 
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just, with respect to the property. 

So I think he was a person, if you --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- interpret it broadly, consistent with NRS 

118.903. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  And it was believed that he had control, all 

right, and he did attend an evidentiary hearing. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  And the Court issued an order that it thought 

was just, and he didn't comply with that order.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  The only thing missing, I'm sure as you 

noticed, is there was no service of the actual subpoena on him --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- which I think is the mechanism to officially 

obtain jurisdiction, where he's -- where he didn't voluntarily appear, and 

is not named as a party, and wasn't served with a -- and not served with 

a summons and complaint.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  Just look at this, because --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.   Thank you.   

THE COURT:  And I don't think that interpretation is 

inconsistent with the authority you just apprised the Court.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I agree.   
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THE COURT:  Believe me --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I agree.  

THE COURT:  I don't want to have to revisit this issue if I 

don't have to.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  No, I understand.  

THE COURT:  But I don't want to further delay the 

proceedings where the Court has found that your client is entitled to the 

cars.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  That there's been obstruction in you getting the 

information that you need as to who owns them, and obstruction in you 

locating the cars, and violation of the Court's orders.     

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  I agree with you on all of that.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you.  Yes.  

THE COURT:  What I'm not sure, is if my order gave valid 

notice to Mr. Detweiler, that the Court was entertaining jurisdiction over 

him, and I'm not sure, under these facts, if this Court ever actually had 

personal jurisdiction over him, aside from any --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  -- jurisdiction I had over Harry Hildibrand.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I see what you're saying.  I see what you're 

saying.  

THE COURT:  So I --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I --  
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THE COURT:  And I know you respect the Court's analysis 

here, and --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  -- you've done such a good job in the various 

steps you've taken, with this one thing, and I went back and looked 

through the record, and I don't think I'm misstating the facts, but if I am, I 

need to know.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't think you are misstating the facts.  I 

don't believe Mr. Detweiler received a subpoena.  My position is, I don't 

think that's necessary.  I mean, a subpoena --  

THE COURT:  I know.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  A subpoena is for a third party to a lawsuit.   

Mr. Detweiler, he appeared in a representative capacity.  He 

was the managing member of Harry Hildibrand.  We didn't need to send 

a subpoena to Harry Hildibrand.  Harry Hildibrand was already a party, 

and we issued an order to show cause.  That order to show cause was 

served on Harry Hildibrand as an entity, and it was served on Mr. 

Detweiler.  It wasn't a subpoena, but it was an order to show cause. 

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Can you get me Chapter 31 of the 

statutes? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  So that's my position.  Is, yeah, I think if 

you had a person who was a third party to a lawsuit that -- you know, say 

you just had some stranger that for some reason stole property that 

belonged to the Debtor, then you might have to --  

THE COURT:  Right, right.  
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MR. BRAGONJE:  --- send them a subpoena, because they're 

a third party.  In this case Harry Hildibrand was never -- they were never 

a third -- well --  

THE COURT:  Well, they were, but they came in.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  They came in.  They were a party, 

effectively became a named party in the lawsuit, because they 

intervened.  What they are is intervening.  

THE COURT:  It think it was at one part, Marquis Auerbach -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  -- and then it was Maysher [phonetic], who 

stepped in, arguing at one point that there was improper procedure to 

execute on the cars, supposedly belonging to Harry Hildibrand, and then 

you did an additional attachment writ --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- levy procedure to --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  And then they admitted there was 

jurisdiction.  They, on the record they said, "Yeah, we're properly in the 

case," so --  

THE COURT:  Give me one more moment to --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  Thank you.   

[Pause] 

THE COURT:  I remember Mr. Detweiler was doing some 

work in the Bahamas, or something like that?  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  I don't even know if he's still in the 

country, to be honest with you.  
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THE COURT:  Well, I believe -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah, Honduras.  

THE COURT:  -- there was an effort to serve him with a 

warrant, right --   

MR. BRAGONJE:  We did.  

THE COURT:  -- at his  house?  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, I don't -- no, no, no.  

THE COURT:  And I don't know what contact, if any, was 

made with him.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I don't believe any contact was made.  

Certainly as soon as Your Honor signed the warrant, I approached a 

constable and said, let's try and find if he's still around.  But I don't 

believe they ever got to that point of actually making contact.  I think it all 

stopped in their office.  But, yes, we did move expeditiously once Your 

Honor signed the warrant, for sure, yeah.   

THE COURT:  Give me a moment just to --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  No problem.  

THE COURT:  -- study something -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  No problem, yes.  

THE COURT:  -- in light of -- you can sit down if you want, 

you've been standing awhile.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  I'm going to look up Chapter 31, too.  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  What I'm looking at now, if I were to 

vacate the warrant --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  
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THE COURT:  -- and require that you serve a subpoena, 

pursuant to 31.100, how quickly can you serve it, and then what is the 

next step, and how quickly would you be able to do the next step? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  That  means --  

THE COURT:  And I know you don't need any more steps, 

because your client must be very frustrated, and I --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, we have to do Your Honor's order, 

we're here to do that, we're here to be cooperative; we want to do the 

right thing as well, and this is complicated.   

THE COURT:  And I know you think you have done the right 

thing, and I could see why.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  I just don't know what a  next 

step would be.  I mean, if we were to serve him with a subpoena, what 

would we do after that?  We've already had a contempt trial, in which he 

appeared twice and gave testimony.  It's not as if he didn't have notice.  

Your Honor warned him many times that he was under threat of going to 

jail.  He expressed concern about that.  He was certainly aware; we could 

look back at the record.   

So I don't know what else we would do.  We could serve him 

with a subpoena --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- and have him come in, but then to what 

effect?  I mean, he won't change his testimony, it's already set in stone.   

THE COURT:  I suppose we could ask him, is there any 

additional information that you would provide to the Court, besides your 
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affidavit --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  We could always do that.  

THE COURT:  -- and what you've already testified to.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.    

THE COURT:  And he  would probably say, no.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  And then at that point -- well, let me -- let's 

read this together.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

[Pause] 

THE COURT:  Well, I suppose under 31.100, if a subpoena 

served and he appeared and had nothing new to say, on the very same 

day, because it says I could do what is just, under the totality of the 

circumstances I could issue the order --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  -- that he immediately turns over the property, 

as a prior order, and give him a week to do so, and at the end of that 

week, then I could hold him in contempt. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  And issue the warrant.  So I guess it's all 

contingent upon how quickly you could get a subpoena served on him. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  And I don't know.  I don't know where he 

is.  My --  

THE COURT:  I mean, I suppose if you could serve him with a 

warrant you could serve him with a subpoena? 
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MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  I don't have contact with him.  I've 

deposed him once; I've examined him in here Court.  Other than that I 

don't know his whereabouts.  

THE COURT:  Did you have an address you were trying to 

serve him on? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I got is address when I deposed him, I 

asked for that, so we were going to use that address to try to serve him.  

THE COURT:  Once you get him served with a subpoena the 

Court has personal jurisdiction, and the Court can issue any order that is 

just, including --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  -- you know, having him turn over the property 

within a week, because he's already had notice.  And then if he doesn't 

the Court can immediately issue an order, consistent with the exact same 

order I've issued --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  Well, not a contempt order -- well, yeah, it 

would be a contempt order.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  It would be the same exact order --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  -- that I issued before.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  We thank the Court --  

THE COURT:  I feel comfortable doing that, Mr. Bragonje.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.   

PA00561



 

- 25 - 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

THE COURT:  Notwithstanding -- I'm not saying your 

interpretation is wrong --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh, okay.  

THE COURT:  -- and you can tell your client that the Court 

said that, that the Court, you know, believes there's a high probability 

that your interpretation is correct.  But the Court has a 20 percent 

concern that perhaps we need to button this up a little bit more.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, we thank the Court for its concern, 

and its analysis is not something that we rebuff.  I am just looking again 

at my own order, if Your Honor will bear with me.  Your Honor is citing 

to Section 31, but the contempt powers that we proceeded under, were 

under Chapter 22.   

THE COURT:  Right.  But Chapter 22 allows the Court to issue 

an order of contempt for violation of a court order.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:   And so that gets us back to, when the Court 

issued that January 9th, 2019 order, did the Court have jurisdiction to do 

that? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right, right, right.  

THE COURT:  So, yes, I could hold him in contempt for 

violating an invalid order, but he would be able on a motion to quash 

that contempt.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  And, frankly, if the court order is invalid 

because I didn't have jurisdiction, I don't want him to have to go through 
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the trouble of --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  --  questioning a contempt order, if the 

contempt order is invalid.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  Okay.   

THE COURT:  In fact, I don't want him to bring an action 

against you for, you know, --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  False imprisonment.  

THE COURT:  -- abuse of process -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  Yeah.  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- or false imprisonment. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  Or attorney's fees.  I have to be mindful of that, 

as well.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  So --  

THE COURT:  So -- 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  I think I understand --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  What I'm going to do --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I think I understand --  

THE COURT:  I hate to do this.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- what the Court is saying.  

THE COURT:  After all the time and trouble, and the difficulty 

that might be attended, tracking him down again, I'm going to vacate the 

existing warrant, vacate the order of contempt.  Grant you leave of Court 

to serve a subpoena on him --  
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MR. BRAGONJE:  To appear here? 

THE COURT:  A subpoena for him to appear before this 

Court, and to give deposition, or explanation to this Court,  under oath, 

as to why, as to the matters stated within 31.100, which includes whether 

he possesses the subject property, or the subject property as under his 

control, and whether he's entitled to any credits as to such property that 

may belong to the Defendant.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  I think I understand.   

THE COURT:  Just track the language, you could probably 

say it better than me.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  I would include in there, and whether he is the 

alter ego of Harry Hildibrand.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  And/or whether he should be bound to the 

same extent that Harry Hildibrand has provided --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right, right, right.  

THE COURT:  -- under 118.  I don't know that you need all of 

that, you probably just need to track the statute.  I'll leave that part to 

your discretion.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  The Court would be satisfied with you just 

tracking the beginning sentence --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh, okay.  

THE COURT:  -- of the statute.  
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MR. BRAGONJE:  I think I understand.  

THE COURT:  And maybe you want to put in there, that at 

such hearing the Court will incorporate by reference all other testimony 

that he has provided to this Court --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  In the past.  

THE COURT:  -- in the past and hear any additional testimony 

that he would like to give.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  Something to that effect.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I think I understand.  

THE COURT:  It incorporates every -- but it gives him notice 

that we're holding him personally responsible, and I'm giving him an 

opportunity, just to speak his peace, if there's anything more he wants to 

say.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:   And put in there, because I can issue such 

order, as the Court deems just.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.   

THE COURT:  Put in there that if he fails to appear the Court 

will hold him in civil contempt of court and issue a warrant for  his arrest.  

Put that in there too.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  I hope I said that clearly, so that --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I think I understand.  

THE COURT:  -- you understand what it is.   
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MR. BRAGONJE:  I think I understand.   

THE COURT:  Maybe you want to prepare it for the Court's 

signature.  As soon as I get it, you can call up the law clerk and say, hey, 

it's there, can we get it signed right away.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  Uh-huh.   

THE COURT:  You can probably have this to me tomorrow, 

the day before Christmas and get it to your process server, and get it --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  We --  

THE COURT:  -- served on him right away.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  So --  

THE COURT:  Which is what you're trying to do too.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  All this does -- and tell him to come here in ten 

days.  All this does --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  -- is delay your warrant by ten days. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh, I think I understand Your Honor is 

making the hard choices, and that's why you wear the robe, and we 

stand up when you come into the room; so we respect that.  We thank 

Your Honor and we will be glad to do that.  

THE COURT:  To the extent you can simplify this summons 

too, that would be fine.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.   

THE COURT:  Maybe you can call it -- call it maybe an order -- 

I guess I can't do an order.  You call it a summons to appear for the 
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purpose -- just summons to appear, and then in the body you'd explain 

whatever you need to explain.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  Put to Mr. Detweiler, you're hereby 

commanded to appear, date and time, in this matter, for the following 

reasons.  And then set it forth, failure to do so, contempt of Court, you 

know, bench warrant.  I think it's probably a 1 to 2-page document, right? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh, yeah, yeah.  I think it's pretty simply.  

Although, probably it ought to contain that language -- it ought to be 

titled, I think maybe a subpoena and/or summons or something like that, 

because we probably want to track the NRS 31.100 language about the --  

THE COURT:  31.100 says --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- subpoena.  It speaks in terms of the 

subpoena.   

THE COURT:  Subpoena, right.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Not a summons.  

THE COURT:  Right, that's what I'm talking about, use 

"subpoena" --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  And whatever other additional language that 

you think --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  

THE COURT:  -- that you might need, based on your analysis.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  I know you have a different interpretation.  I 
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have to, when you're trying to arrest somebody for a million-dollar dept, 

in a situation like this I want to be extra cautious.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you, Your Honor, that's fine.  

THE COURT:  So thank you for being understanding.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  That's fine.  Does Your Honor wish to have 

this back, here? 

THE COURT:  Yes, please.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  May I approach? 

THE COURT:  Yes.  All right.  Thank you very much.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  You're welcome.  

I have one other unrelated things --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  Have you located Mr. Foust? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  No.  That's what I was going to ask about.  

So I think the Court had set a status conference for the 30th, on Mr. 

Foust.  A warrant --  

THE COURT:  Oh, because I thought he would be arrested by 

then --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  

THE COURT:  -- and that was just a notice to the Court that 

we might need to make sure he's not locked up somewhere.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.   

THE COURT:  So --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  No, we haven't found him.  You know, 

frankly, it looks like he's not in Nevada.  I mean, perhaps not surprisingly, 

he's kind of fled the --  
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THE COURT:  There's a way you could perfect  this in other 

States.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Well, we've looked into that.  It's very 

difficult.  I think, unlike a criminal warrant, where States will cooperate 

and sort of effectively extradite someone, in a civil matter we've talked 

through, working through our law enforcement here in Nevada, they 

have reached out too -- we think he's just in Los Angeles, I don't think 

he's far away, but the California people, and I don't know that it's 

different anywhere else, they really don't -- they don't cooperate -- 

THE COURT:  I think you want civil. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  --  for civil extradition. 

THE COURT:  I think you want to serve civil.  You can arrest 

him and  hold him until such time as the property is turned over.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh, certainly, yeah.  

THE COURT:  Criminal it's just a punishment and then he's 

out. 

MR. BRAGONJE:  Oh, yes.  No, no, no.  I don't mean to 

suggest that this is a criminal contempt --  

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  But my point --  

THE COURT:  But the procedure is easier? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  My point in mentioning that, is just that we 

haven't been able to find him.  We haven't been able to get him, even 

though he's in LA, because he' not in within the boundaries of Nevada.  

So I'd like the warrant and that order to remain outstanding beyond the 
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30th; that's what I'm asking.  

THE COURT:  Absolutely.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  The warrant remains effective, let's say for 

another six months.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  And/or until further order of this Court.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  And then the --  

THE COURT:  You could put in there, the Court orders that 

this warrant is effective for any jurisdiction with the United states, 

provided appropriate compliance is made with respect to the laws of that 

jurisdiction.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  If you want to get a revised warrant, if you 

think that's necessary at some point, submit it.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay, yeah.  Thank you for the offer.  I 

don't know that that would make a difference.  So I think what we're 

going to try and do, is just to keep looking for him.  And, you know, I 

don't think he's going to stay out of Nevada forever.  And I think when he 

comes back --  

THE COURT:  Yeah.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  -- we'll try and find him.  

THE COURT:  Have you made any UCC filings, with respect to 

these cars, so in the event that they're sold, there's --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Not --  
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THE COURT:  And the reason I ask is not because I'm trying 

to help you, I'm trying to make sure that we followed, you know, proper 

attachment procedures to minimize the risk of the individual being 

arrested.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Right.  No.   No, we have not.   

THE COURT:  All right.  I'll let you --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  We'll look into that.  

THE COURT:  -- to your own devices.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  We'll look into that.   

So then am I excused from appearing on the 30th? 

THE COURT:  You're excused from appearing on the 30th.  All 

I would ask is if he is arrested, to your knowledge, contact my law clerk 

and let him know that --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  You bet.  

THE COURT:  -- CCDC is pretty good at letting the department 

know --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.  

THE COURT:  -- but I didn't want it to be missed.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  All right.  Off the record.   

[Court and Clerk confer] 

THE COURT:  Vacating the status check.  I had -- and we're 

vacating the warrant, recalling and vacating the warrant.  Let your 

process server know --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Yeah.  
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THE COURT:  -- that in place of the warrant you're serving the 

subpoena or summons.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  I mean, if it is a subpoena, does Your 

Honor even need to sign it?  I mean, normally just attorneys sign the 

subpoenas.  I'm happy to have Your Honor sign it.  Maybe that's best in 

this situation, if Your Honor signs it.  

THE COURT:  You want to put me on the hook, huh? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  I'm happy to sign.  

THE COURT:  I'll sign it.  Get it to me, and the Court will say, 

you know, approved, or it is so ordered.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  Right, right.  

THE COURT:  Whatever.   

MR. BRAGONJE:  Okay.   

THE COURT:  Something like that, okay? 

MR. BRAGONJE:  It may be a few days, just with the  holiday 

and everything like that, I've got to talk with my client, so --  

THE COURT:  Jordan Ross, that's your --  

MR. BRAGONJE:  That's on us, not on the Court.  

THE COURT:  Your process server is Jordan Ross.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Correct,  yeah.   

THE COURT:  And perhaps you want something to him, in 

writing, indicating that the warrant has been permanently recalled.  

MR. BRAGONJE:  Uh-huh.  

THE COURT:  Okay.  Off the record.  

///// 
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MR. BRAGONJE:  Thank you, Your Honor.  

THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Bragonje.  

[Proceedings adjourned at 10:09 a.m.] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:  I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the  
audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case to the  
best of my ability.   
   
____________________________________ 
Maukele Transcribers, LLC 
Jessica B. Cahill, Transcriber, CER/CET-708 
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Washington corporation, 
 

                     Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor, 
 

vs. 
 
JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and 
his marital community, if any, 
 

Defendant/Judgment Debtor. 
 

 Case No.:  A-17-760779-F 
 
Dept. No.: II 
 
 

SUBPOENA – CIVIL 
 REGULAR   DUCES TECUM 

 
 
 

THE STATE OF NEVADA SENDS GREETINGS TO: 

EDWARD N. DETWILER 

 

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED that all and singular, business and excuses set 

aside, you appear and attend on the 29th day of January, 2020, at the hour of 9:00 A.M. in 

Department No. II of the District Court, Clark County, Nevada.  The address where you are 

required to appear is the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada.  Your 

attendance is required to give testimony and/or to produce and permit inspection and copying of 

designated books, documents or tangible things in your possession, custody or control, or to 

permit inspection of premises.   

You are required to appear pursuant to NRS 31.100 and to give testimony and be examined 

under oath concerning the following matters: (1) your status as a person owing debts to the 

defendant and judgment debtor James Patterson Foust Jr. or having in your possession or under 
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your control any credits or other personal property belonging to the defendant and judgment 

debtor James Patterson Foust Jr.; (2) whether you are an alter ego of Harry Hildibrand, LLC; (3) 

any updates or additions to the testimony you previously gave before this Court on April 1, April 

24, May 17, and May 21, 2019 and pertaining to this Court’s Order to Appear and Show Cause 

Why Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt for violating this Court’s prior Findings 

of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment issued on January 9, 2019; and (4) any other 

matter properly within the scope of NRS 31.100. 

CONTEMPT: Your failure to appear will place you at risk of civil contempt.  Failure by 

any person without adequate excuse to obey a subpoena served upon that person may be deemed a 

contempt of court.  NRCP 45(e).  If you fail to attend, you may be liable to pay $100, plus all 

damages caused by your failure to appear, and may be committed to jail.  NRS 50.195, 50.205.  

Additionally, the court may issue a warrant for your arrest pursuant to its civil contempt powers.  

NRS 22.010(3); NRS 1.210(2); NRS 21.340.  Please see Exhibit “A” attached hereto for 

information regarding the rights of the person subject to this Subpoena. 

                                                                                                                           
     LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
 
 
By:   

John E. Bragonje  (SBN.: 9519) 
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996 
 

      Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank 
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EXHIBIT “A” 
NEVADA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 

 
Rule 45 
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoena. 
 (1) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall 
take reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that 
subpoena.  The court on behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and 
impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may 
include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attorney’s fee.   

(2) (A) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated 
books, papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person 
at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or 
trial. 
      (B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a person commanded to produce and permit 
inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before the time 
specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the party or 
attorney designated in the subpoena written objection to inspection or copying of any or all of the 
designated materials or of the premises.  If objection is made, the party serving the subpoena shall 
not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or inspect the premises except pursuant to an 
order of the court by which the subpoena was issued.  If objection has been made, the party 
serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at any time for 
an order to compel the production.  Such an order to compel production shall protect any person 
who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from the inspection 
and copying commanded. 
 (3) (A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or modify 
the subpoena if it 
  (i) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance; 
  (ii) requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to travel to a 

place more than 100 miles from the place where that person resides, is employed or 
regularly transacts business in person, except that such a person may in order to attend trial 
be commanded to travel from any such place within the state in which the trial is held, or 

  (iii) requires disclosure of privileged or other protected matter and no exception 
or waiver applies, or 

  (iv) subjects a person to undue burden. 
      (B) If a subpoena 
  (i) requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research, 

development, or commercial information, or  
  (ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert’s opinion or information not 

describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the expert’s study 
made not at the request of any party,  

the court may, to protect a person subject to or affected by the subpoena, quash or modify the 
subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued shows a substantial need for the 
testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures that the 
person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may order 
appearance or production only upon specified conditions. 
 
(d) Duties in Responding to Subpoena. 
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 (1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as 
they are kept in the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with 
the categories in the demand. 
 (2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is privileged 
or subject to protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made expressly and shall 
be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, communications, or things not 
produced that is sufficient to enable the demanding party to contest the claim.  
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BREF 
John E. Bragonje 
State Bar No. 9519 
E-mail: jbragonje@lrrc.com 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996 
Tel: 702.949.8200 
Fax: 702.949.8398 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor 
Baker Boyer National Bank 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
 

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a 
Washington corporation, 
 

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor, 
 

vs. 
 
JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and 
his marital community, if any, 
 

Defendant/Judgment Debtor. 
 

 Case No.:  A-17-760779-F 
 
Dept. No.: II 
 
BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF CONTINUING 
REQUEST TO HOLD EDWARD N. 
DETWILER IN CIVIL CONTEMPT OF 
COURT 
 
Date: January 31, 2020 
 
Time: 8:30 a.m. 
 

  

Introduction 

The plaintiff and judgment creditor Baker Boyer National Bank (the “Bank”) asks that this 

Court adjudge Edward N. Detwiler in contempt of Court and issue a warrant for his arrest.  The 

Bank asks that Mr. Detwiler be taken into custody when he is scheduled to appear on January 31, 

2020.  This remedy is warranted because Mr. Detwiler is the person that controls Harry 

Hildibrand, LLC (“HH”), and HH has—for more than one year now—defied this Court’s repeated 

orders to surrender a collection of vehicles to satisfy the underlying judgment.  

/ / /  

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/24/2020 5:53 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Relevant Background 

This matter has been pending since August 31, 2017.  More than one year ago—on January 

9, 2019—the Court issued its Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment (the 

“Order”), resolving a series of prior supplemental proceedings in favor of the Bank and against 

Mr. Foust and third party claimant HH.  The Order required “Mr. Foust and HH and any of their 

respective agents, employees, or affiliates [] including without limitation Mr. Detwiler . . . on 

penalty of contempt, to deliver up, surrender possession of, and turn over to the Bank promptly, in 

a manner that protects the cars from any damage all cars identified in Exhibits A and B, with any 

cost or expense involved in delivery to the Bank to be borne by Mr. Foust and/or HH.”  (Order, 

Conclusion of Law ¶ 29 (emphasis supplied), on file herein.) 

Mr. Detwiler has refused to obey the Order.  As a consequence, this Court conducted an 

evidentiary hearing pursuant to its contempt powers.  Pursuant to an order to show cause, Mr. 

Detwiler testified during the May 17 and May 21, 2019 contempt trial.  (See transcripts of 

testimony filed herein on 6/12/19, and incorporated by this reference.)  After considering the 

extensive documentary evidence and testimony, this Court issued the following minute order: 
 

The Court GRANTS Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor’s Motion to hold Mr. Detwiler 
and Harry Hildebrand in Civil Contempt of Court. At the Evidentiary Hearing on 
this matter Mr. Detwiler and Harry Hildebrand both had the ability to comply with 
this Court’s prior Order to surrender and turnover the subject cars, but intentionally 
and knowingly failed to comply, without justification. Mr. Detwiler argued that he 
was merely a figure-head of Harry Hildebrand, LLC, but that argument was clearly 
negated by the evidence; at all relevant times Mr. Detwiler was the controlling 
Manager of Harry Hildebrand, LLC, and as such accepted and possessed the 
responsibility to control the assets of Harry Hildebrand, LLC, including its classic 
cars. The Court ORDERS that a Warrant of Commitment (Arrest) be issued as to 
Mr. Detwiler, commanding his confinement until such time as he surrenders that 
sub-set of the 20 cars that he swore were in the possession, custody, and/or control 
of Harry Hildebrand LLC at the time of the Court’s turnover Order. Bond shall be 
required in the amount of $100,000.00. Further, pursuant to NRS 22.100, the Court 
fines Harry Hildebrand LLC $ 500.00, for its Contempt of Court, and further 
sanctions Harry Hildebrand and Orders it to pay the total amount of Plaintiff Baker 
Boyer’s fees and costs incurred in connection with this matter. Baker Boyer shall 
prepare the Order herein, including appropriate context and authorities, consistent 
with this Minute Order and the evidence presented at the hearing. Plaintiff shall 
attach to such Order its Affidavit of Fees and Costs. Plaintiff shall also prepare the 
Warrant of Commitment against Mr. Detwiler. 

(11/19/19 Minute Order, on file herein.)   
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The Bank respectfully reminds the Court of the order it signed on December 16, 2019 to 

implement this minute entry, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  The Bank asks that 

the Court consider the order it previously signed (Exhibit 1) as the Bank’s continuing argument 

and summation of the evidence.   

There is no need for extensive additional testimony or other procedures going forward.  

This record of Mr. Detwiler’s misconduct is extensive.  He has given testimony under oath on four 

occasions: at deposition ordered by this Court (July, 2018); during the Section 341 meeting of 

creditors during HH’s bankruptcy proceeding (August, 2018); at the hearing resolving HH’s third 

party claim under NRS 31.070 (November, 2018); and during the contempt proceedings (May, 

2019).   

Given the great volume of testimony that Mr. Detwiler has already offered, the Bank will 

only examine Mr. Detwiler about a small item of additional information discussed below.  It 

would be inappropriate, moreover, to allow Mr. Detwiler to alter or multiply his prior extensive 

statements.  See NRS 50.115(1) (“The judge shall exercise reasonable control over the mode and 

order of interrogating witnesses and presenting evidence . . . [t]o avoid needless consumption of 

time.”).  The Bank has waited too long for justice to be required now, at long last, to revisit Mr. 

Detwiler’s days’ worth of previous testimony.  See NRCP 1 (procedure exists “to secure the just, 

speedy, and inexpensive determination of every action and proceeding.”).  As many wise jurists 

have said, “all things must come to an end, and that includes litigation.”  E.g., Lara v. Best Dry 

Cleaners, Inc., No. 6:17-CV-99-ORL-28TBS, 2017 WL 11037318, at *3 (M.D. Fla. Aug. 1, 

2017), report and recommendation adopted, No. 6:17-CV-99-ORL-28TBS, 2017 WL 11037319 

(M.D. Fla. Sept. 25, 2017).  The time for decision is now. 

Mr. Detwiler Has Had Repeated Notice and Opportunity to Be Heard 

 At the hearing on December 23, 2019, this Court expressed an interest that Mr. Detwiler be 

served a subpoena under NRS 31.100.  At the time of the hearing, speaking extemporaneously, the 

undersigned did not believe Mr. Detwiler had been served with a subpoena.  However, with the 

benefit of the chance to consult the extensive record, we have determined that Mr. Detwiler was 

indeed served with a subpoena long ago—on June 19, 2018.  (See Exhibit 2 hereto).  Mr. Detwiler 
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appeared and gave deposition testimony pursuant to this subpoena on July 6, 2018.  The subpoena 

was served through the Court’s electronic system upon the law firm then representing Mr. 

Detwiler, Holland & Hart.  (Id.)  Mr. Detwiler was also served with a second subpoena requiring 

his attendance at the forthcoming hearing.  (See 1/22/20 Status Report, on file herein.)  And most 

significantly of all, Mr. Detwiler was personally served with an order to appear and show cause 

why he should not be held in contempt.  The service of this Court’s order to show cause (Exhibit 

3), which identifies Mr. Detwiler by name, was personally served upon him on March 19, 2019 

(Exhibit 4).  There are no due process defects.  Mr. Detwiler has had three separate, independently 

sufficient instances of notice and an opportunity to be heard.   
 

Additional Evidence Shows the Close Relationship Between  
Messrs. Foust and Detwiler 

Mr. Detwiler has tried to distance himself from Mr. Foust when speaking before this 

Court.  The evidence, as summarized in Exhibit 1, has always been to the contrary.  There is more 

for the Court to consider.  Even after all of the hearings and depositions in two states, both men 

are owners and principals of active entities registered with the Nevada Secretary of State that share 

the same office located at office space 10120 South Eastern Avenue, Henderson: 
 

Entity Name Officer 
JPF ENTERPRISES, LLC James P Foust, Manager 
PSV DEVELOPMENT, LLC Edward N Detwiler, Managing Member 
NAI'A RESORTS LLC Edward N Detwiler, Manager 
DALLAS WEST MANAGEMENT LLC Edward N Detwiler, Managing Member 

The reports from which this table are generated are offered as Exhibit 5.  

Conclusion 

            The Bank respectfully submits that this Court has the authority to commit Mr. Detwiler to 

prison under NRS Chapter 22, as more particularly described at paragraphs 16 to 25 in the 

Conclusions of Law of this Court’s December 16, 2019 order (Exhibit 1).   

. . . 

. . .  

. . . 

. . .  
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The Bank asks that Mr. Detwiler be taken into custody when he is scheduled to appear on January 

31, 2020.   

 DATED this 24th day of January, 2020. 
 

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
 
 
By: /s/ John E. Bragonje  

John E. Bragonje 
State Bar No. 9519 
jbragonje@lrrc.com 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169 
 

 Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor Baker 
Boyer National Bank 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Rule 5(b), I hereby certify that on this date, I electronically filed and served the 

foregoing document entitled “BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF CONTINUING REQUEST TO HOLD 

EDWARD N. DETWILER IN CIVIL CONTEMPT OF COURT” through the Court’s electronic 

filing system on all registered parties in this matter.  
 

Michael D. Mazur, Esq. 
MAZUR & BROOKS  
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
2355 Red Rock Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
Attorneys for Defendant James Patterson Foust, Jr. 
 
Via Email to: 
 
Brenoch Wirthlin 
KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
400 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 400 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
bwirthlin@klnevada.com  
 

DATED this 24th day of January, 2020. 

/s/ Luz Horvath  
An employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
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SUB
John E. Bragonje
State Bar No. 9519
E-mail:jbragonje@lrrc.com
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996
Tel: 702.949.8200
Fax: 702.949.8398

Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor Baker Boyer National Bank

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a
Washington corporation,

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor,

vs.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and
his marital community, if any,

Defendant/Judgment Debtor.

Case No.: A-17-760779-F

Dept. No.: II

SUBPOENA

THE STATE OF NEVADA SENDS GREETINGS TO:

ED DETWILER

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED, that all and singular, business and excuses set aside,
you appear and attend on the 22nd day of JUNE, 2018, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. at the offices of
Lewis and Roca LLP, 3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600, Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 to
give testimony; Plaintiff in the above-named action will take your deposition. The deposition will
be upon oral examination before a Notary Public, or before some other officer authorized by law
to administer oaths and shall be recorded by stenographic means. Plaintiff reserves the right to
record the deposition by videotape and to conduct the deposition using instant visual display.

IF YOU FAIL TO ATTEND, you will be deemed guilty of contempt of Court and liable to
pay all losses and damages caused by your failure to appear. Your attendance is required to give
testimony and/or to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated books, documents or
tangible things in your possession, custody or control, or to permit inspection of premises. You are
required to bring with you at the time of your appearance any items set forth below. Please see
Exhibit "A" attached hereto for information regarding the rights of the person subject to this
Subpoena.

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
6/19/2018 12:50 PM
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Issued at the request of officer of the court licensed to practice in Nevada (NRCP 45(a)(3)):

Dated this 18th day of June, 2018

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP

By:
John E. Bragonje (SBN 9519)
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169

Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor

PA00612



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

105232265_1 3

3
9

9
3

H
o

w
ar

d
H

u
gh

es
P

kw
y,

Su
it

e
6

0
0

La
s

V
eg

as
,N

V
8

9
1

6
9

-5
9

9
6

ITEMS TO BE PRODUCED

Kindly produce all documents you intend to attempt to introduce into evidence at the

evidentiary hearing set for June 29, 2018.
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EXHIBIT A

NEVADA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
Rule 45
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoena.

(1) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall
take reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that
subpoena. The court on behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and
impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may
include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attorney’s fee.

(2) (A) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated
books, papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person
at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or
trial.

(B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a person commanded to produce and permit
inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before the time
specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the party or
attorney designated in the subpoena written objection to inspection or copying of any or all of the
designated materials or of the premises. If objection is made, the party serving the subpoena shall
not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or inspect the premises except pursuant to an
order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. If objection has been made, the party
serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at any time for
an order to compel the production. Such an order to compel production shall protect any person
who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from the inspection
and copying commanded.

(3) (A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or modify
the subpoena if it

(i) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance;
(ii) requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to travel to a

place more than 100 miles from the place where that person resides, is employed or regularly
transacts business in person, except that such a person may in order to attend trial be commanded
to travel from any such place within the state in which the trial is held, or

(iii) requires disclosure of privileged or other protected matter and no exception
or waiver applies, or

(iv) subjects a person to undue burden.
(B) If a subpoena

(i) requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research,
development, or commercial information, or

(ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert’s opinion or information not
describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the expert’s study made not
at the request of any party, the court may, to protect a person subject to or affected by the
subpoena, quash or modify the subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued
shows a substantial need for the testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue
hardship and assures that the person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably
compensated, the court may order appearance or production only upon specified conditions.
(d) Duties in Responding to Subpoena.

(1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as
they are kept in the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with
the categories in the demand.

(2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is privileged
or subject to protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made expressly and shall
be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, communications, or things not
produced that is sufficient to enable the demanding party to contest the claim.
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NOTC
John E. Bragonje
State Bar No. 9519
E-mail:jbragonje@lrrc.com
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996
Tel: 702.949.8200
Fax: 702.949.8398

Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a
Washington corporation,

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor,

vs.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and
his marital community, if any,

Defendant/Judgment Debtor.

Case No.: A-17-760779-F

Dept. No.: II

NOTICE OF SERVING
SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM

Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 45(b)(1), Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank

by and through counsel of record John Bragonje of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP, hereby

give notice that they are serving the attached Subpoena Duces Tecum on:

Ed Detwiler
c/o Joseph Went

HOLLAND & HART
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

Las Vegas, NV 89134

Dated this 19th day of June, 2018.

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP

By: /s/ John E. Bragonje
John E. Bragonje (SBN.: 9519
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996

Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
6/19/2018 12:50 PM
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Rule 5(b), I hereby certify that on this date, I electronically filed the foregoing

document entitled “Notice of Serving Subpoena” with the Clerk of the Court and caused a true

and accurate copy of the same to be e-served through the Court’s electronic system to the parties

below:

Joseph Went
HOLLAND & HART
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, NV 89134

Cody S. Mounteer
Tom W. Stewart
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89145

DATED this 19th day of June, 2018.

/s/ Luz Horvath
An employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP
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Exhibit 3

Exhibit 3
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Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
2/21/2019 4:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Exhibit 4

Exhibit 4
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Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
2/28/2019 12:42 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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NCOA (CIV) 

BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282) 

AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.  (NV SBN 15172) 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89145 

Telephone:  (702) 362-7800 

Facsimile:  (702) 362-9472 

E-Mail: bwirthlin@klnevada 

  
Attorneys for Edward Detwiler 

  
 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

* * * 

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a 
Washington corporation, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

vs. 
 

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually and 
his martial community, if any, 
 

Defendant 
 
 

 

 CASE NO. A-17-760779-F 

DEPT NO.  2 

 

NOTICE OF APPEARANCE 

  

 

 
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE 

YOU AND EACH OF YOU PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Brenoch Wirthlin, Esq., 

(Nevada Bar  No. 10282), Kolesar & Leatham, 400 South Rampart Blvd., Suite 400, Las Vegas, 

Nevada 89145, on behalf of his client, EDWARD DETWILER, hereby submits this NOTICE OF 

APPEARANCE in the above-entitled cause of action and hereby requests that all further papers  

// 

//  

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/28/2020 8:18 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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and pleadings herein, except original process, be served upon Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank 

and Defedant James Pattterson Foust, Jr., through their respective attorneys of record via the 

Court’s electronic filing system 

DATED this 27th day of January 2020. 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

 

 

By /s/ BRENOCH WIRTHLIN   

BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282) 
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.  (NV SBN 15172) 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89145 

Telephone:  (702) 362-7800 

Facsimile:  (702) 362-9472 

E-Mail: bwirthlin@klnevada 

  
      Attorneys for Edward Detwiler 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Kolesar & Leatham, and that on the 27th day of 

January 2020, I caused to be served a true and correct copy of foregoing NOTICE OF 

APPEARANCE in the following manner: 

 (ELECTRONIC SERVICE)  Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, the above-referenced 

document was electronically filed on the date hereof and served through the Notice of Electronic 

Filing automatically generated by the Court’s facilities to those parties listed on the Court’s Master 

Service List. 

 

/s/ S. DIANNE POMONIS 
An Employee of KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
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MPOR
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282)
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ. (NV SBN 15172)
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 
Email: abaker@klnevada.com 
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* * *

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK,
a Washington corporation,

Plaintiff,
v.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR.,
individually,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: A-17-760779-F

DEPT NO.: II

NON-PARTY EDWARD DETWILER'S
MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A
PROTECTIVE ORDER AND
CONTINUANCE OF HEARING

ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME

HEARING REQUESTED ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME

Pursuant to Rules 26(c) and 45(c) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, non-party

Edward Detwiler ("Mr. Detwiler"), hereby submits his motion ("Motion") requesting the Court

issue a protective order relative to the subpoena recently served on Mr. Detwiler commanding he

appear before this Honorable Court on January 29, 2020, at 9:00 a.m ("Subpoena")'. In addition,

as set forth herein, it appears a hearing with respect to the Subpoena and additional matters has

been set with this Court for January 31, 2020. Further, because counsel for plaintiff Baker Boyer

National Bank (the "Bank" or "Plaintiff'), who issued the subpoena, has agreed to combine the

deposition referenced in the Subpoena with the hearing on January 31, 2020 (collectively referred

' A copy of the Subpoena is attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

HEART G REQUIRED
DATE:

Page 1 of 10

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/29/2020 12:24 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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to herein as the "Hearing"), Mr. Detwiler hereby submits this Motion to this Court to continue the

Hearing to enable Mr. Detwiler and his newly retained undersigned counsel to prepare for the

Hearing, particularly given the fact that the Bank is seeking Mr. Detwiler's indefinite 

imprisonment until he pays a judgment that is not even against him, and cannot properly be so

construed.

As set forth more fully herein, the undersigned law firm has only become involved in this

case in the last few days and given the very broad scope of the Subpoena, the length of the

proceedings that have already transpired in this matter, in addition to what appears to be the

attempts by the Bank to hold Mr. Detwiler — a non-party — somehow responsible for a judgment

against defendant James Foust, Jr. ("Defendant" or "Mr. Foust"), and the very serious nature of

the potential consequences of this matter — including the fact that a bench warrant for Mr.

Detwiler's arrest was issued and then apparently vacated2 due to the Bank's failure to serve Mr.

Detwiler (and the order of contempt against Mr. Detwiler was also vacated) — Mr. Detwiler hereby

requests time to prepare for this matter.

This Motion and accompanying request for order shortening time are made and based upon

the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Declaration of Brenoch R. Wirthlin

("Wirthlin Declaration"), the Declaration of Mr. Detwiler ("Detwiler Declaration"), any argument

the Court may entertain at a hearing on this matter, and all papers and pleadings on file herein.

DATED this 27th day of January, 2020.

By

KOLESAR & LEATHAM

NOCH WI LIN, ESQ.
V SBN 102 2)

AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.
(NV SBN 15172)
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler

2 The Court's minutes state the warrant and order of contempt regarding Mr. Detwiler were vacated. The journal
entries mention a stay of proceedings. Both have been included herein as Exhibit 4.

Page 2 of 10
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ORDER SHORTENING TIME 

Based upon the Declaration of Brenoch R. Wirthlin, Esq., and good cause appearing

therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the hearing on NON-PARTY EDWARD

DETWILER'S MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND

CONTINUANCE OF HEARING ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME shall be shortened and

hearing before the above-entitled Court in front of the this Court, Department II, on the

oL41--- day of NSo4
;-D 

Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89155.

Respectfully Submitted by:
KOLESAR & LEATHAM

By
BRE OCH WIRHLIN, ESQ.
(NV SBN 10282)
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.
(NV SBN 15172)
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 
Email: abaker@klnevada.com 
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler

2020, at the hour of

, or as soon thereafter as counsel may be heard, at the Regional Justice

//3/1aZ 40/Liz,—

Page 3 of 10
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

I INTRODUCTION

As set forth herein,3 the Bank's request to imprison Mr. Detwiler indefinitely is extremely

problematic for multiple reasons, including without limitation, the following:

1. First, in its Brief, the Bank makes clear it is seeking to imprison Mr.
Detwiler as a way of extorting him to pay a judgment owed, not by him, but
by Mr. Foust. This is wholly improper, violative of binding Nevada
Supreme Court precedent as set forth in Callie v. Bowling, 123 Nev. 181,
182, 160 P.3d 878, 878 (2007) — which requires that a separate action be
filed to establish any liability for a non-party under an alter ego theory. The
Bank's improper actions also appear to be a violation of NRS § 207.190
(coercion), and also may give rise to an abuse of process claim by Mr.
Detwiler against the Bank.

2. Second, under Nevada's civil contempt statutes, including without
limitation NRS § 22.110, the draconian and extreme punishment of
indefinite imprisonment may only, be imposed on an individual where the
contempt "consists in the omission to perform an act which is yet in the 
power of the person to perform..." Here, Mr. Detwiler's testimony, and
the other evidence in this case, has been grossly misrepresented to this
Court. The truth is, Mr. Detwiler's testimony has been consistent that he
never had involvement with, or ownership of, the vehicles at issue
("Vehicles"). Moreover, Mr. Detwiler resigned as a manager of Harry 
Hildibrand, LLC (the "Company") effective September 10, 2019. See
Declaration of Edward N. Detwiler, attached as Exhibit 2 hereto, and Mr.
Detwiler's letter of resignation, attached hereto as Exhibit 3.4 There can be

3 In addition to the instant Motion, Mr. Detwiler will file a formal and complete response ("Response") to the Bank's
Brief in Support of Continuing Request to Hold Edward N. Detwiler in Civil Contempt of Court, filed herein on
January 24, 2020 (the Bank's "Brief'). Mr. Detwiler incorporates all arguments and assertions from said response
herein.

4 See also Montana Code Annotated, § 35-8-307

35-8-307. Management and voting

(1) Unless the articles of organization or the operating agreement provide otherwise, in a member-
managed company:

(a) each member has equal rights in the management and conduct of the company's
business; and

(b) except as provided in subsection (3), any matter relating to the business of the company
may be decided by a majority of the members.

(2) Unless the articles of organization or the operating agreement provide otherwise, in a
manager-managed company: 

(a) each manager has equal rights in the management and conduct of the company's
business;

(b) except as provided in subsection (3), any matter relating to the business of the company

Page 4 of 10
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no basis to hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt.

3. Finally, the Bank makes multiple inaccurate assertions in its Brief, and its
proposed Order for Punishment of Contempt by Harry Hildibrand, LLC and
Edward N. Detwiler, Its Manager ("Vacated Contempt Order"), which will
be fully addressed in Mr. Detwiler's Response to the Brief However, one
glaring and false representation to this Court is that Mr. Detwiler has been
represented by counsel in this case, including by the law firm of Holland &
Hart. See Brief at p. 4. This is false. Holland & Hart represented the
Company, never Mr. Detwiler. The Company's attorney once accepted
service of a subpoena on behalf of Mr. Detwiler, but the entirety of this case
since Mr. Detwiler's appearance has seen Mr. Detwiler without proper
representation of any kind. The Bank has clearly taken advantage of this
fact, and seeks to continue to do so. For example, despite the Subpoena's
extremely broad command that Mr. Detwiler appear and be required to
testify about "[ajny updates or additions to the testimony" he previously
gave on numerous occasions (itself a violation of NRCP 30 since Mr.
Detwiler has already been deposed), now that Mr. Detwiler has retained an
attorney, suddenly the Bank does not want this Court to permit Mr. Detwiler
to testify about these issues. See Brief at p. 3.

In other words, the Bank wants to violate Mr. Detwiler's Constitutional due process 

rights, ignore binding Nevada Supreme Court case precedent by effectively obtaining a

judgment against him without following any of the required procedures, stifle his ability to 

testify about what the Bank itself subpoenaed him to address, and then throw him in jail

indefinitely until he pays a ludynent against someone else or surrenders Vehicles purportedly

in the control of an entity from which he has resigned all affiliation. 

Given the Bank's egregious behavior, the numerous due process violations that the Bank

has committed against Mr. Detwiler, and the voluminous documentary, testimonial and other

evidence in this case, as well as the unfounded and egregious — but still existent — attempts by the

may be exclusively decided by the manager or, if there is more than one manager, by a majority of
the managers; and

I c) a manager: 
(i) must be designated, appointed, elected, removed, or replaced by a vote,

approval, or consent of a majority of the members; and
(ii) holds office until a successor has been elected and qualified, unless the 

manager sooner resigns or is removed. 

Mont. Code Ann. § 35-8-307 (West) (emphasis added); see also NRS §47.250 (13) (regarding the presumption that
"a letter duly directed and mailed was received in the regular course of mail).

Page 5 of 10
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Bank to imprison Mr. Detwiler indefinitely for a debt against someone else, Mr. Detwiler would

request 60 days in order to prepare for the Hearing in this matters

II. DECLARATION OF BRENOCH R. WIRTHLIN, ESQ. IN SUPPORT NON-
PARTY EDWARD DETWILER'S MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE
ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME

I, Brenoch R. Wirthlin, declare as follows:

1. I am a shareholder at the law firm of Kolesar & Leatham ("K&L").

2. I make this declaration in support of non-party Edward Detwiler's ("Mr.

Detwiler")'s Motion for Entry of a Protective Order on Order Shortening Time ("Motion") in the

above-captioned matter.

3. K&L was very recently contacted to represent Mr. Detwiler in connection with a

deposition and/or evidentiary hearing currently set for January 31, 2020.

4. It is my understanding that Mr. Detwiler was served with the Subpoena only a few

days ago, on January 17, 2019.

5. The Subpoena, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, is extremely broad

in the scope of the testimony it seeks from Mr. Detwiler, including without limitation:

a. (1) His status as a person owing debts to the defendant and judgment debtor
James Patterson Foust Jr. or having in his possession or under his control
any credits or other personal property belonging to the defendant and
judgment debtor James Patterson Foust Jr.;

b. (2) Whether Mr. Detwiler is an alter ego of Harry Hildebrand, LLC;

c. (3) Any updates or additions to the testimony he previously gave before this
Court on April 1, April 24, May 17, and May 21, 2019, and pertaining to
this Court's Order to Appear and Show Cause Why Defendants Should Not
Be Held in Civil Contempt for violating this Court's prior Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment issued on January 9, 2019; and

d. (4) any other matter properly within the scope of NRS 31.100

6. In addition, after a review of the Court's docket, it appears an order of contempt

5 Should this Court see fit to continue the pending Hearing, Mr. Detwiler would, of course, be amenable to a briefing
schedule to respond to the Brief consistent with the Court's schedule.
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and bench warrant were issued against Mr. Detwiler, after which the Court vacated the warrant

and the order of contempt due to the Court's concern that the Bank had never served Mr. Detwiler

with a Subpoena. See Court Minutes from December 23, 2019, attached hereto as Exhibit 4 for

the Court's convenience.

7. Given the very broad scope of the Subpoena — which would be at a minimum the

second deposition of Mr. Detwiler and he objects to this as a deposition in violation of NRCP 30(a)

— as well as the fact that it appears that the Bank is attempting to hold Mr. Detwiler, a non-party,

somehow responsible for a judgment against Defendant Foust, and the very serious nature of the

potential consequences of this matter, Mr. Detwiler will need time to prepare for the above

deposition and the pending Hearing. Undersigned counsel, who was only contacted within the last

few days to represent Mr. Detwiler, will also need time to prepare.

8. In addition, it appears the Bank has committed, and asked this Court via its Brief to

assist in committing, numerous violations of Nevada law and Mr. Detwiler's Constitutional due

process. In its Brief, it is clear the Bank is seeking to imprison Mr. Detwiler as a way of extorting

him to pay a judgment owed — not by him — but by Mr. Foust.

9. The Bank's brief attaches as Exhibit 1 thereto the Vacated Contempt Order. The

Vacated Contempt Order states that Mr. Detwiler can only be released from prison by delivering the

Vehicles at issue "or paying the Bank in immediately available funds the value of the vehicles

listed in Exhibit B, $521,575..." See Vacated Contempt Order, Exhibit 1 to the Bank's Brief, at p.

17, ¶ 31 (emphasis added).

10. This is wholly improper and violative of binding Nevada Supreme Court precedent

as set forth in Callie v. Bowling, 123 Nev. 181, 182, 160 P.3d 878, 878 (2007), in which the Court

held as follows:

A party who wishes to assert an alter ego claim must do so in an independent
action against the alleged alter ego with the requisite notice, service of process,
and other attributes of due process. When the judgment creditor employs the
proper procedure, the defendant who is subject to the alter ego claim is assured a
full opportunity of notice, discovery, and an opportunity to be heard before
potentially being found liable. The failure to abide by this procedure results in
a deprivation of due process. 

Callie, 123 Nev. at 185, 160 P.3d at 881 (emphasis added).
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11. There is no dispute that the judgment at issue is not against Mr. Detwiler. The Bank

requests in its Subpoena testimony by Mr. Detwiler as to where he is an "alter ego” of the Company

(which is also removed from the actual judgment debtor, Mr. Foust).

12. Yet, as of the date of this Motion the Bank has not so much as initiated the required

separate action against Mr. Detwiler, much less obtained the required judgment against him. Despite

this gross lack of due process on the Bank's part, it seeks to have Mr. Detwiler imprisoned to pay a

debt he does not owe.

13. In addition, it appears that the Bank's behavior in threatening indefinite imprisonment

against Mr. Detwiler until he pays someone else's debt may be a violation of not only NRS § 207.190

(coercion), but also may give rise to an abuse of process claim by Mr. Detwiler against the Bank.

14. Moreover, Nevada's civil contempt statutes, including without limitation NRS §

22.110, provide that the draconian and extreme punishment of indefinite imprisonment may only be

imposed on an individual where the contempt "consists in the omission to perform an act which is 

yet in the power of the person to perform..."

15. Here, it appears clear that Mr. Detwiler's testimony, and the other evidence in this

case, has been grossly misrepresented to this Court, and that Mr. Detwiler's testimony has been

consistent that he never had control of the Vehicles at issue, and would have turned them over if it

was "in his power to perform."

16. Mr. Detwiler has confirmed that he sent his resignation as a manager of Harry

Hildibrand, LLC, effective September 10, 2019. See Declaration of Edward N. Detwiler, attached

as Exhibit 2 hereto, and Mr. Detwiler's letter of resignation, attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

17. There can be no basis to hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt.

18. Finally, while prior counsel for the Company (Holland & Hart) may have previously

accepted service of a subpoena on Mr. Detwiler's behalf, he has not been represented by counsel in

this case. He has now retained the undersigned law firm, and requests that he and the undersigned

firm be given sufficient time to prepare for the upcoming Hearing, given the serious nature of the

remedies improperly sought by the Bank.

19. Pursuant to NRCP 26(c), as well as EDCR 2.34, I have reached out to Mr. John

Page 8 of 10
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Bragonje, counsel for the Bank, via email (on January 21, 2020) and telephone (on January 22,

2020), to discuss a continuance of the date set in this matter for Mr. Detwiler's testimony.

20. Mr. Bragonje and I were able to speak on January 22, 2020, for approximately ten

(10) minutes.

21. During that phone call, I asked Mr. Bragonje if the Bank would agree to a continuance

of the upcoming deposition of Mr. Detwiler to allow for adequate preparation. Mr. Bragonje said

the Bank would not agree to a continuance.

22. Later, however, Mr. Bragonje contacted me to say that no hearing was set regarding

the Subpoena, and that he had contacted the Court and would agree to have this matter set for January

31, 2020.

23. During that second phone call, I informed Mr. Bragonje that I would agree to move

the hearing and/or date for compliance with the Subpoena from January 29 to January 31, but that I

reserved the right to file the instant Motion requesting additional time given the fact that the Bank

sought to imprison Mr. Detwiler indefinitely to pay a debt that is not even his. Mr. Bragonje

acknowledged that he understood.

24. Accordingly, counsel for the movant has in good faith conferred with other affected

parties in an effort to resolve the instant matter without Court action, but was unable to do so, as set

forth herein.

25. Mr. Detwiler therefore requests that the Court grant an extension of 60 days to allow

Mr. Detwiler and undersigned counsel to prepare.

26. Given the fact that the deposition in front of this Court is set for January 31, 2020, an

order shortening time for a hearing on the Motion is respectfully requested as there is not sufficient

time to hear this Motion in the ordinary course.

27. Mr. Detwiler respectfully requests that this Court hear this Motion on shortened time

so it may be heard prior to the scheduled deposition/Hearing.

28. I am providing a copy of this Motion to the Bank's counsel at the same time I am

submitting it to chambers today, January 27, 2020. In addition, I personally informed the Bank's

counsel, Mr. Bragonje, via telephone this morning that the instant Motion would be submitted today.
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29. This Motion is brought in good faith and not for purposes of delay.

I declare the following to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief under

penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Nevada.

Dated January 22, 2020.

BRENO H IRTHLIN

III. CERTIFICATION OF COUNSEL

As set forth in the Wirthlin Declaration, undersigned counsel certifies that, pursuant to NRCP

26(c), as well as EDCR 2.34, undersigned counsel has reached out to Mr. John Bragonje, counsel

for the Bank, via email and telephone on multiple occasions to discuss a continuance of the date set

in this matter for Mr. Detwiler's testimony and the upcoming Hearing, but counsel has not been able

to resolve this matter.

IV. CONCLUSION

For all these reasons, non-party Mr. Detwiler respectfully requests this Court set a hearing

on the instant Motion on shortened time, as soon as practicable, and grant Mr. Detwiler a 60-day

extension of the pending Hearing, to allow sufficient time to respond to the Bank's Brief and

prepare for a hearing/deposition in this matter.

DATED this 22nd day of January, 2020.

By

KOLESAR & LEATHAM

BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ.
(NV SBN 10282)
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.
(NV SBN 15172)
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 
Email: abaker@klnevada.com 
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler
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CCO3
John E. Bragonje
State Bar No. 9519
E-mail:jbragonje@lrrc.com
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996
Tel: 702.949.8200
Fax: 702.949.8398

Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a
Washington corporation,

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor,

vs.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and
his marital community, if any,

Defendant/Judgment Debtor.

Case No.: A-17-760779-F

Dept. No.: II

SUBPOENA — CIVIL
Ei REGULAR ❑ DUCES TECUM

THE STATE OF NEVADA SENDS GREETINGS TO:

EDWARD N. DETWILER

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED that all and singular, business and excuses set

aside, you appear and attend on the 29th day of January, 2020, at the hour of 9:00 A.M. in

Department No. II of the District Court, Clark County, Nevada. The address where you are

required to appear is the Regional Justice Center, 200 Lewis Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada. Your

attendance is required to give testimony and/or to produce and permit inspection and copying of

designated books, documents or tangible things in your possession, custody or control, or to

permit inspection of premises.

You are required to appear pursuant to NRS 31.100 and to give testimony and be examined

under oath concerning the following matters: (1) your status as a person owing debts to the

defendant and judgment debtor James Patterson Foust Jr. or having in your possession or under

PA00649
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your control any credits or other personal property belonging to the defendant and judgment

debtor James Patterson Foust Jr.; (2) whether you are an alter ego of Harry Hildibrand, LLC; (3)

any updates or additions to the testimony you previously gave before this Court on April 1, April

24, May 17, and May 21, 2019 and pertaining to this Court's Order to Appear and Show Cause

Why Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt for violating this Court's prior Findings

of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment issued on January 9, 2019; and (4) any other

matter properly within the scope of NRS 31.100.

CONTEMPT: Your failure to appear will place you at risk of civil contempt. Failure by

any person without adequate excuse to obey a subpoena served upon that person may be deemed a

contempt of court. NRCP 45(e). If you fail to attend, you may be liable to pay $100, plus all

damages caused by your failure to appear, and may be committed to jail. NRS 50.195, 50.205.

Additionally, the court may issue a warrant for your arrest pursuant to its civil contempt powers.

NRS 22.010(3); NRS 1.210(2); NRS 21.340. Please see Exhibit "A" attached hereto for

information regarding the rights of the person subject to this Subpoena.

LE OCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP

Kt'
ohn . Bragonje (S
3993 Howard Hugh Y, to 600
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996

Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank

107427712_1 2
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EXHIBIT "A"
NEVADA RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

Rule 45
(c) Protection of Persons Subject to Subpoena.

(1) A party or an attorney responsible for the issuance and service of a subpoena shall
take reasonable steps to avoid imposing undue burden or expense on a person subject to that
subpoena. The court on behalf of which the subpoena was issued shall enforce this duty and
impose upon the party or attorney in breach of this duty an appropriate sanction, which may
include, but is not limited to, lost earnings and a reasonable attorney's fee.

(2) (A) A person commanded to produce and permit inspection and copying of designated
books, papers, documents or tangible things, or inspection of premises need not appear in person
at the place of production or inspection unless commanded to appear for deposition, hearing or
trial.

(B) Subject to paragraph (d)(2) of this rule, a person commanded to produce and permit
inspection and copying may, within 14 days after service of the subpoena or before the time
specified for compliance if such time is less than 14 days after service, serve upon the party or
attorney designated in the subpoena written objection to inspection or copying of any or all of the
designated materials or of the premises. If objection is made, the party serving the subpoena shall
not be entitled to inspect and copy the materials or inspect the premises except pursuant to an
order of the court by which the subpoena was issued. If objection has been made, the party
serving the subpoena may, upon notice to the person commanded to produce, move at any time for
an order to compel the production. Such an order to compel production shall protect any person
who is not a party or an officer of a party from significant expense resulting from the inspection
and copying commanded.

(3) (A) On timely motion, the court by which a subpoena was issued shall quash or modify
the subpoena if it

(i) fails to allow reasonable time for compliance;
(ii) requires a person who is not a party or an officer of a party to travel to a

place more than 100 miles from the place where that person resides, is employed or
regularly transacts business in person, except that such a person may in order to attend trial
be commanded to travel from any such place within the state in which the trial is held, or

(iii) requires disclosure of privileged or other protected matter and no exception
or waiver applies, or

(iv) subjects a person to undue burden.
(B) If a subpoena

(i) requires disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential research,
development, or commercial information, or

(ii) requires disclosure of an unretained expert's opinion or information not
describing specific events or occurrences in dispute and resulting from the expert's study
made not at the request of any party,

the court may, to protect a person subject to or affected by the subpoena, quash or modify the
subpoena or, if the party in whose behalf the subpoena is issued shows a substantial need for the
testimony or material that cannot be otherwise met without undue hardship and assures that the
person to whom the subpoena is addressed will be reasonably compensated, the court may order
appearance or production only upon specified conditions.

(d) Duties in Responding to Subpoena.
107427712_1 3
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(1)

(1) A person responding to a subpoena to produce documents shall produce them as
they are kept in the usual course of business or shall organize and label them to correspond with
the categories in the demand.

(2) When information subject to a subpoena is withheld on a claim that it is privileged
or subject to protection as trial preparation materials, the claim shall be made expressly and shall
be supported by a description of the nature of the documents, communications, or things not
produced that is sufficient to enable the demanding party to contest the claim.

107427712_1 4

PA00652



EXHIBIT 2

EXHIBIT 2

PA00653



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

1 1r.,
. ...,
• 4  12
• A' .,-, A

E--, ,:, '''' ,-,z
< -F: 0% t 13W

E i
E t ,,. 14

.23 03 4 ,'; ,.

IC 4 i r02.; e, 15
w c2 :. ,-7
) - v i F..? 16
O & ..
• T.' 17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

DEC
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282)
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ. (NV SBN 15172)
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 
Email: abaker!,klnevada.com 
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* * *

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK,
a Washington corporation,

Plaintiff,
v.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR.,
individually,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: A-17-760779-F

DEPT NO.: II

DECLARATION OF NON-PARTY
EDWARD DETWILER IN SUPPORT OF
HIS MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A
PROTECTIVE ORDER AND
CONTINUANCE OF HEARING

ON ORDER
SHORTENING TIME

I, Edward N. Detwiler, hereby declare as follows:

1. I, Edward N. Detwiler, hereby declare that I am over the age of 18 (eighteen) years

of age and I am competent to give the testimony set forth below. Testimony is given from my own

personal knowledge. If called as a witness, I could and would competently and truthfully testify

as to the facts set forth herein.

2. I am a non-party with respect to the above-captioned action.

3. I make this Declaration in support of my MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A

PROTECTIVE ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING ON ORDER SHORTENING

TIME ("Motion").

Page 1 of 2
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4. On or around September 10, 2019, I sent my letter of resignation ("Letter of

Resignation") as manager of Harry Hildibrand, LLC (the "Company") effective that date, to the

Company and the addresses set forth on the Letter of Resignation.

5. A true and correct copy of which is attached as Exhibit 2 to the Motion.

6. I did not receive any notification that the Letter of Resignation was undeliverable

or not received by the Company.

7. I do not now have, and have never had, any ownership interest in the Company.

8. I have no further affiliation with the Company.

9. I have no knowledge of the current location of the vehicles at issue or ability to turn

them over to the plaintiff in this matter.

I declare the following to be true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief under

penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Nevada.

Dated January 22, 2020.

/s/ Edward N Detwiler
EDWARD N. DETWILER

Page 2 of 2
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Edward Detwiler
Coldwell Banker Premier Realty

September 10, 2019

Jim Foust
7 Avenida De Magnolia
Ranch Palos Verdes, CA 90275

Ron Vega, c/o Tom Larkin
2201 Corte Sabio #2201
San Diego, CA 92128

Re: Resignation as Manager of Harry Hildebrand, LLC

Gentlemen,

As you are aware, I am a licensed real estate agent in Nevada, and I had agreed to
serve as manager of the Harry Hildebrand, LLC in anticipation of performing real
property acquisition services here in Nevada. The need for those services has not
materialized, and due to Ron Vega's health circumstances, it seems the need for such
services are unlikely to materialize.

On the other hand, I have just received and reviewed the Entry of Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law and Final Judgment dated December 19, 2018 regarding the
Baker Boyer National Bank versus Jim Foust matter. - - By the way, I am a bit
concerned, to say the least, that I was not provided a copy of this sooner.

In reviewing this ruling, I find the following findings compelling to my circumstance
as manager of Harry Hildebrand, LLC (HH).

According to Paragraph 29 I have been ordered to "deliver up, surrender possession
of, and turn over to the Bank promptly ..... all cars identified in Exhibits A and B."

However, I have no idea where any of these cars might be currently located. I have
only seen a few of these cars, and that was some time ago. I am not in possession of
any titles to any of the subject cars, I have no keys to any such cars, I have no access
to any location where any of these cars might be located, and again, I do not know
where any of these cars are currently located. Additionally, I have no financial
means to "deliver up" these cars even if the foregoing issues were resolved, and I
have no control over any HH bank account that might exist in order to finance any
such "delivering up" process.

Based upon the above, and the fact the court concluded that Jim Foust was the
owner, and in possession and control of the cars, I am not sure what role I could play
in delivering up any of the identified cars. Especially since on Page 8, Paragraph 29,
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Page 9, Paragraph 36, and Page 15, Line 1, I am referred to as a "supposed manager
of HH." Furthermore, the ruling also cites and recites my testimony on Page 15,
Lines 1 through 5 confirming that I know nothing of any vehicles other than the four
vehicles I saw being utilized by Mr. Foust and/or his family.

This reality is further mentioned at Page 16, Paragraph 74, where again my
testimony is cited and recited confirming I am unaware of vehicles other than the
four being utilized by Mr. Foust and/or members of his family.

Furthermore, Page 10, Lines 8 & 9, and Page 11 Paragraph 51, states that Mr. Foust
owns and controls the subject cars.

In fact, Page 14, Paragraph 67 states "that the evidence is uncontroverted and
overwhelming that Mr. Foust "retained possession or control of the property
transferred after the transfer [to HH]."" Then again, under Conclusions of Law and
Final judgment - relate to Other Cars, on Page 21, Paragraphs 16 through 22, the
court concluded, "Mr. Foust still owns, possesses and controls the cars in question..."

Consequently, I am not sure why the court, based upon its own findings and
conclusions, would order ME to produce the subject cars; as it is an impossibility.

Accordingly, based upon all of the foregoing, I have no means to comply with the
court order, and frankly, if I was somehow provided with the financial resources to
"deliver up" said cars, I would not know where to begin.

Consequently, I must, and I hereby do, resign as manager of Harry Hildebrand, LLC,
a Montana Limited Liability Company, effective immediately.

Please advise your respective legal counsels and advisors.

Sincerely,

Edward Detwiler
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1/27/2020 https://www.clarkcountycourts.us/Anonymous/CaseDetail.aspx?CaselD=11803431&HearingID=201061733&SingleViewMode=Minutes

REGISTER OF ACTIONS
CASE No. A-17-760779-F

Baker Boyer National Bank, Plaintiff(s) vs. James Foust, Jr.,
Defendant(s)

Case Type: Foreign Judgment
Date Filed: 08/31/2017
Location: Department 2

Cross-Reference Case Number: A760779

PARTY INFORMATION

Defendant LFoust, James Patterson, Jr. Also Known
As Foust, James P, Jr.

Lead Attorneys
Michael D. Mazur, ESQ
Retained
702-564-3128(W)

Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank John E. Bragonje
Retained
702-949-8200(W)

EVENTS & ORDERS OF THE COURT

12/23/2019 Status Check (9:00 AM) (Judicial Officer Scotti, Richard F.)
Status Check: Warrant

Minutes
12/23/2019 9:00 AM

Court expressed concern regarding whether a subpoena was ever
served on Mr. Detwiler. Mr. Bragonje stated he did not believe Mr.
Detwiler was served with a subpoena, however had been the subject
of an Order to Show Cause. Court stated in the Order entered on
November 20, 2019, James Foust was named the judgment debtor
and reviewed prior findings. Mr. Bragonje reviewed the last Order of
the Court. COURT ORDERED, warrant VACATED, and Order of
Contempt VACATED. Court directed Mr. Bragonje to serve a
subpoena on Mr. Detwiler to appear before the Court and to give
deposition or explanation under oath as to the matters stated within
NRS 31.100, to inquire whether Mr. Detwiler is the alter ego of Harry
Hildibrand, and to possibly include the Court to include by reference all
other testimony provided to the Court in the past, and any additional
testimony he may want to give, and include if he fails to appear, the
Court will hold him in civil contempt of court and issue a warrant. Mr.
Bragonje stated he had not been able to locate Mr. Foust in Nevada,
believed he was in Los Angeles, and requested the warrant extended
beyond December 30. COURT FURTHER ORDERED, the warrant
effective within any jurisdiction in the United States, for an additional
six months; December 30, 2019 Status Check VACATED.

Return to Register of Actions

https://www.clarkcountycourts.us/Anonymous/CaseDetaikaspx?Casela=11803431&HearingID=201061733&SingleViewMode=Minutes 1/1
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A-17-760779-F

Foreign Judgment

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

COURT MINUTES December 19, 2019

A-17-760779-F Baker Boyer National Bank, Plaintiff(s)
vs. James Foust, Jr., Defendant) 

December 19, 2019 10:00 AM Minute Order

HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: Chambers

COURT CLERK: Elizabeth Vargas

PARTIES Minute Order- No parties present.
PRESENT:

JOURNAL ENTRIES

- The Court, sua sponte, hereby issues a temporary STAY on the execution and enforcement of the
Warrant of Arrest and Commitment of Edward N. Detwiler until December 30, 2019 at 5PM (PST).
This Stay is effective immediately. Further, a Status Check Hearing on the Warrant is hereby set for
Monday, December 23, 2019 at 9AM.

CLERK'S NOTE: This Minute Order was electronically served by Courtroom Clerk, Elizabeth Vargas,
to all registered parties for Odyssey File & Serve. //ev 12/19/19

PRINT DATE: 12/19/2019 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: December 19, 2019
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Kolesar & Leatham, and that on the 29th day of 

January, 2020, I caused to be served a true and correct copy of foregoing NON-PARTY 

EDWARD DETWILER’S MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND 

CONTINUANCE OF HEARING ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME in the following 

manner: 

 (ELECTRONIC SERVICE)  Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, the above-referenced 

document was electronically filed on the date hereof and served through the Notice of Electronic 

Filing automatically generated by the Court’s facilities to those parties listed on the Court’s 

Master Service List. 

 

/s/ S. DIANNE POMONIS 
An Employee of KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
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OPPS 
John E. Bragonje 
State Bar No. 9519 
E-mail: jbragonje@lrrc.com 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996 
Tel: 702.949.8200 
Fax: 702.949.8398 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor 
Baker Boyer National Bank 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
 

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a 
Washington corporation, 
 

Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor, 
 

vs. 
 
JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and 
his marital community, if any, 
 

Defendant/Judgment Debtor. 
 

 Case No.:  A-17-760779-F 
 
Dept. No.: II 
 
OPPOSITION TO NON-PARTY 
EDWARD DETWILER’S MOTION 
FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE 
ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF 
HEARING ON ORDER SHORTENING 
TIME 
 
and 
 
ERRATUM PROVIDING CORRECT 
AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE UPON 
EDWARD DETWILER  
 
Date: January 30, 2020 
 
Time: 1:30 p.m. 
 

  

INTRODUCTION 

The plaintiff and judgment creditor Baker Boyer National Bank (the “Bank”) opposes the 

referenced motion and asks the Court to deny the requested 60-day continuance.  This paper also 

provides the Court with the correct exhibit to the brief filed on January 24, 2020.  Exhibit 4 to that 

brief was to have been an affidavit of service upon Edward Detwiler commanding him to appear 

for the contempt trial.  We accidentally provided the affidavit for Harry Hildebrand, LLC not Mr. 

Detwiler.  Exhibit 1 to this paper is the correct affidavit.   

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/29/2020 3:40 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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I. 

NON-PARTIES CAN BE HELD IN CONTEMPT, AND THE BANK IS ONLY ASKING THIS. 

Mr. Detwiler’s new counsel repeatedly argue that the Bank is attempting “to hold Mr. 

Detwiler—a non-party—somehow responsible for the judgment.”  (Opp’n 2:9.)  This is false.  The 

underlying judgment exceeds $1.25 million.  The Bank has never requested this from Mr. 

Detwiler.  The repeated citations to Callie v. Bowling, 123 Nev. 118, 160 P.3d 878 (2007) are 

inapposite because, unlike that case, the Bank has never attempted to amend this foreign judgment 

to add Mr. Detwiler as a party.  Rather, Mr. Detwiler is being called before the Court on contempt 

charges because he is the officer of the company that flouts this Court’s orders for more than one 

year running.  Non-parties can obviously be held in contempt under Nevada law (and we are sure 

the law of every other jurisdiction).  The law of supplemental proceeding, proceedings in aid of 

execution in, is set forth in NRS Chapter 21.  This statute explicitly contemplates contempt for 

non-parties and witnesses: 
 
 NRS 21.340  Disobedience of master’s orders; contempts.  If any 

person, party or witness disobey an order of the master, properly made in the 
proceedings before the master under this chapter, he or she may be punished by the 
court or judge ordering the reference, for a contempt. 

(Emphasis supplied.)  The contempt statutes themselves likewise obviously empower a court to 

enforce its orders against non-parties.  See NRS 22.040. 

II. 

IF THE OFFICERS OR AGENTS OF A COMPANY ARE GUILTY OF A CONTEMPT 

THEY MAY BE ATTACHED AND PUNISHED THEREFORE. 

If the officers or agents of a company are guilty of a contempt, they may be attached and 

punished therefore.  See generally 17 C.J.S. CONTEMPT § 57.  Thus, corporate officers or company 

agents are punishable for contempt where they have knowledge or notice of an order directed to 

the company and they are responsible for the company’s violation thereof.  C.f. In re Waters of 

Humboldt River, 118 Nev. at 903, 59 P.3d at 1227 (concluding that “the district court has the 

power to sentence a government official to jail for criminal contempt committed in an official 

capacity”); see also N.L.R.B. v. Sequoia Dist. Council of Carpenters, AFL-CIO, 568 F.2d 628, 634 

PA00664



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

110361740.1 
 

 

 3 
 

39
93

 H
ow

ar
d 

Hu
gh

es
 P

kw
y,

 S
ui

te
 6

00
 

La
s V

eg
as

, N
V 

89
16

9-
59

96
 

(9th Cir. 1977) (quotation marks omitted) (collecting cases) (“A command to a corporation is in 

effect a command to those who are officially responsible for the conduct of its affairs.”); United 

States v. Laurins, 857 F.2d 529, 535 (9th Cir. 1988) (“A nonparty may be held liable for contempt 

if he or she either abets or is legally identified with the named defendant . . . .  An order to a 

corporation binds those who are legally responsible for the conduct of its affairs.”); Nikko 

Materials USA, Inc. v. R.E. Serv. Co., No. C 03-2549 SBA, 2006 WL 1749550, at *4 (N.D. Cal. 

June 22, 2006) (“When a corporation refuses to abide by an order directing the corporation to 

perform an act, and the corporation is under the control of a single corporate officer or managing 

agent, the Ninth Circuit has held that a district court may hold the corporate officer in contempt, as 

well as the corporation, even when the corporate officer is not a party to the underlying action.”). 

Because companies and corporations can only act through their agents, a contempt order 

need not explicitly warn agents of potential liability for contumacious conduct.  17 C.J.S. 

CONTEMPT § 57.  More careful practice, however, dictates an explicit warning directed to named 

agents:  
 
It is usual, in an order directed against a corporation, to lay the restraint or 
command, not only on the corporation itself, but also on its officers, agents, and 
servants, so that in the case of its violation not only the corporation itself is 
amenable to punishment, but also its officers, agents, and servants, whether or not 
parties to the proceeding, provided they have knowledge of the terms of the order 
and disobey it willfully. 
 
Additionally, since a corporation is capable of violating a court order only if its 
agents act or refrain from acting, it follows that the order directed at the corporation 
is binding on agents authorized to act on its behalf, whether specifically named in 
the order or not. 

Id. 

Here, the Court’s order explicitly commanded Mr. Detwiler by name, on penalty of 

contempt, to turn over the 20 vehicles.  (See 1/19/10, Order, Conclusion of Law ¶ 29, on file 

herein.)  Mr. Detwiler could have had no reasonable doubt about how he would need to act to 

avoid punishment.  Harry Hildibrand, LLC (“HH”) is a foreign limited liability company.  It 

cannot be incarcerated.  When a company acts in contempt of court, the agents that direct such 

actions must be punished.  If the law where otherwise, business organizations would be free to 

disobey orders.  That is absurd.  The Bank is simply asking Mr. Detwiler in his capacity as 
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manager of HH to comply with this Court’s orders to turn over the vehicles—or pay their value as 

listed in the bankruptcy schedules that Mr. Detwiler himself prepared. 

III. 

MR. DETWILER HAD AND HAS THE ABILITY TO COMPLY. 

Mr. Detwiler again claims he had no ability to company.  This is prevarication.  The Court 

need not take our word for it; consider instead to Mr. Detwiler’s own testimony he has given in his 

deposition, at the bankruptcy proceedings, and in other documents filed with regulators, all of 

which show his personal control over HH ability to comply.  We respectfully refer the Court to 

Exhibit 1 to our January 24, 2020 brief, the order previously signed by this Court which collects 

this varied evidence that spans years. 

 One new point merits brief comment.  Mr. Detwiler now argues that he cannot comply 

because he has resigned as a manager.  The timing of this resignation allows this argument to be 

dismissed out of hand.  Here is the timeline: 

• January 10, 2019: The Court enters the order requiring HH and all its agents, including 

specifically Mr. Detwiler, to turn over the vehicles.  Notice of judgment is given to 

Holland & Hart, which represented Mr. Detwiler.  (1/10/19 Notice of Entry of Judgment, 

on file herein.) 

• January 23, 2019: Counsel writes to Mr. Detwiler by email and regular mail demanding 

turnover of vehicles.  (See Exhibit 1 to 2/21/19 Application, on file herein.) 

• February 21, 2019: Mr. Detwiler is served with the Application for Order to Show Cause 

Why Defendants Should Not Be Held in Civil Contempt.  (On file herein.) 

• March 19, 2019: Mr. Detwiler is personally served with Order to Show Cause.  (See 

Exhibit 3 to 1/24/20 Brief, on file herein.)  NB: the brief we filed on January 24, 2019 

accidentally included the affidavit of service for HH, not for Mr. Detwiler personally.  Mr. 

Detwiler was personally and separately served with the order to show cause on March 19, 

2019, as stated in the brief.  We are including this affidavit of service as Exhibit 2 hereto 

by way of this erratum. 
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• May 17 and 21, 2019: Mr. Detwiler appears and testifies in his own behalf and in behalf 

of HH during the contempt proceedings.   

 Mr. Detwiler claims that he resigned from HH on September 10, 2019.  This was of course 

months after the contempt trial had concluded and nine months after this Court gave its order.   

An company officer cannot escape contempt charges simply by resigning after the fact.   

The Ninth Circuit, for instance, teaches that an officer’s “resignation does not immunize him from 

liability for contempt [for his conduct when he was director].”  Inst. of Cetacean Research v. Sea 

Shepherd Conservation Soc’y, 774 F.3d 935, 956 (9th Cir. 2014). 

 The Sixth Circuit reached a similar conclusion when it affirmed an order of contempt 

against a director who had resigned because the contemptuous conduct occurred prior to the 

director’s resignation: “We affirm as to Director Turner because the district court’s contempt 

award was based in part on conduct that occurred after entry of the Consent Order in July *399 

2006 but before Cullman resigned on November 28, 2006.”  Williamson v. Recovery Ltd. P’ship, 

467 F. App’x 382, 398–99 (6th Cir. 2012).  See also Hoffman Beverage Co. v. Forrest Mart Tid 

Bit Shop, 135 N.Y.S.2d 795, 797 (City Ct. 1954) (“It is the Court’s opinion that under the 

circumstances disclosed here the officer of the corporate judgment-debtor may not hide . . . on the 

ground that he had resigned as a director and vicepresident.”); 55 C.J.S. MANDAMUS § 445 (“A 

resignation by a public officer for the purpose of evading the performance of a mandamus writ 

compelling an official duty is not of itself a contempt if the official resigns before it becomes his 

or her duty to obey the writ. However, if the mandate is served and the officer fails to obey it, the 

later resignation from office will not exempt the officer from punishment for the disobedience 

prior to the resignation.”).  

CONCLUSION 

            The Bank respectfully submits that this Court has the authority to commit Mr. Detwiler to 

prison under NRS Chapter 22, as more particularly described at paragraphs 16 to 25 in the 

Conclusions of Law of this Court’s December 16, 2019 order.   

. . .  

. . . 
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The Bank asks that Mr. Detwiler be taken into custody when he is scheduled to appear on January 

31, 2020.   

 DATED this 29th day of January, 2020. 
 

LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
 
 
By: /s/ John E. Bragonje  

John E. Bragonje 
State Bar No. 9519 
jbragonje@lrrc.com 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169 
 

 Attorneys for Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor Baker 
Boyer National Bank 

  

PA00668



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

110361740.1 
 

 

 7 
 

39
93

 H
ow

ar
d 

Hu
gh

es
 P

kw
y,

 S
ui

te
 6

00
 

La
s V

eg
as

, N
V 

89
16

9-
59

96
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Rule 5(b), I hereby certify that on this date, I electronically filed and served the 

foregoing document entitled “OPPOSITION TO NON-PARTY EDWARD DETWILER’S 

MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING 

ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME and ERRATUM PROVIDING CORRECT AFFIDAVIT 

OF SERVICE UPON EDWARD DETWILER” through the Court’s electronic filing system on 

all parties on the Court’s e-service list.  

 
Michael D. Mazur, Esq. 
MAZUR & BROOKS  
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
2355 Red Rock Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
Attorneys for Defendant James Patterson Foust, Jr. 
 
Brenoch Wirthlin 
KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
400 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 400 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
bwirthlin@klnevada.com  
 

DATED this 29th day of January, 2020. 

/s/ Luz Horvath  
An employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
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Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
3/22/2019 10:00 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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NTC 

BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282) 

AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.  (NV SBN 15172) 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89145 

Telephone:  (702) 362-7800 

Facsimile:  (702) 362-9472 

E-Mail: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 

Attorneys for Edward Detwiler 
  
 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

* * * 

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a 
Washington corporation, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

vs. 
 

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually and 
his martial community, if any, 
 

Defendant 
 
 

 

 CASE NO. A-17-760779-F 

DEPT NO.  2 

 

NON-PARTY EDWARD DETWILER’S 

NOTICE OF OBJECTION PURSUANT 

TO NRS § 22.030 

  

 

 
COMES NOW non-party Edward Detwiler (“Mr. Detwiler”), by and through counsel, and 

hereby submits his objection pursuant to NRS § 22.030 to the Honorable Judge Richard Scotti 

presiding at any further proceedings regarding a issues related to a determination of whether Mr. 

Detwiler has committed any acts constituting contempt of Court. 

DATED this 30th day of January, 2020. 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

 

By /s/ BRENOCH WIRTHLIN  

BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282) 

KOLESAR & LEATHAM 

400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400 

Las Vegas, Nevada  89145 

      Attorneys for non-party Edward Detwiler 

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/30/2020 7:51 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Kolesar & Leatham, and that on the 30th day of 

January 2020, I caused to be served a true and correct copy of foregoing NON-PARTY EDWARD 

DETWILER’S NOTICE OF OBJECTION PURSUANT TO NRS § 22.030 in the following 

manner: 

 (ELECTRONIC SERVICE)  Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, the above-referenced 

document was electronically filed on the date hereof and served through the Notice of Electronic 

Filing automatically generated by the Court’s facilities to those parties listed on the Court’s Master 

Service List. 

 

/s/ S. DIANNE POMONIS 
An Employee of KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
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RPLY
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
BRENOCH WIRTHLIN, ESQ. (NV SBN 10282)
AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ. (NV SBN 15172)
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com 
Email: abaker@klnevada.com
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* * *

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK,
a Washington corporation,

Plaintiff,
v.

JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR.,
individually,

Defendants.

CASE NO.: A-17-760779-F

DEPT NO.: II

NON-PARTY EDWARD DETWILER'S
REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR
ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE ORDER
AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING

Hearing date: January 30, 2020
Hearing time: 1:30 p.m.

Non-party Edward Detwiler ("Mr. Detwiler"), hereby submits his reply in support of his

MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING

ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME ("Motion") as follows:

I. NOTICE OF OBJECTION PURSUANT TO NRS § 22.030

Pursuant to NRS § 22.030, Mr. Detwiler has filed his objection ("Objection")' to this

Honorable Court presiding over any further proceedings regarding a issues related to a

determination of whether Mr. Detwiler has committed any acts constituting contempt of Court.

Undersigned counsel informed counsel for the Bank2 that Mr. Detwiler would be submitting his

Counsel for Mr. Detwiler has endeavored to submit courtesy copies of both the Objection and this Reply to the
Court's chambers at the earliest possible opportunity.

2 Unless otherwise stated, all capitalized terms have the meaning ascribed to them in the Motion.

Page 1 of 8

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/30/2020 9:09 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Objection during a phone call that took place at approximately 4:30 p.m. on January 29, 2020. As

set forth in the Bank's opposition to the Motion ("Opposition"), the Bank seeks to hold Mr.

Detwiler in contempt for a purported refusal to comply with an order of this Court directing the

Company and Mr. Foust to turn over the Vehicles. See Opposition at p. 2. While Mr. Detwiler

has no objection to this Honorable Court generally — and undersigned counsel has great respect for

His Honor, having practiced in front of him many times including when he was a Judge for the

State Contractors' Board — given the nature of the Bank's request Mr. Detwiler feels compelled to

exercise his rights under NRS 22.030.3 This decision is based on the fact that the prior Vacated

Contempt Order was vacated by this Court at its December 23, 2019 hearing4 (and does not appear

to have ever been filed or entered on the docket), and due to the new and additional evidence that

is and will be submitted regarding the Bank's numerous inaccurate and factually incorrect

statements regarding Mr. Detwiler.5

II. ARGUMENT

In its ("Opposition") to the Motion, the Bank makes several misstatements of fact and law.

Glaringly, the Bank now asserts that that it only seeks to hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt until he

turns over the Vehicles he purportedly has the ability to turn over. This is inaccurate. In the

Vacated Contempt Order, the Bank clearly attempted to effectively hold Mr. Detwiler in prison

until he turned over the Vehicles "or 'mild] the Bank in immediately available funds the value

of the vehicles listed in Exhibit B, $521,575..." See Vacated Contempt Order, Exhibit 1 to the

Bank's Brief, at p. 17, ¶ 31 (emphasis added). The Bank knows that Mr. Detwiler has no access
to the Vehicles, so its requested order would — as the Bank is very well aware — be a judgment

against Mr. Detwiler for the money owed by Mr. Foust, from which Mr. Detwiler could only be

relieved by paying the judgment against Mr. Foust. Contrary to the Bank's assertion, it also seeks

3 The Bank's citation to NRS § 22.040 clearly evinces the fact that the Bank seeks to hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt
for acts "not committed in the immediate view and presence of the court or judge", making NRS § 22.030(3) directly
applicable.

4 See Transcript of the December 23, 2019, hearing, on file herein.

5 Further, while Mr. Detwiler addresses the Bank's Opposition to the Motion given today's hearing, he reserves all
rights and privileges, including those under NRS § 22.030.

Page 2 of 8
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to question him about whether he is an "alter ego" of the Company. See Subpoena at Exhibit 1 to

the Motion. Without a proper claim asserted against Mr. Detwiler as required by the Supreme

Court of Nevada in Callie, no such inquiry is proper or relevant. Yet, undoubtedly, the Bank

intends to continue its campaign against Mr. Detwiler's due process and attempt to hold Mr.

Detwiler liable under the judgment against Mr. Foust as an "alter ego" of the Company, which

attempt has numerous due process and statutory violations inherent therein.

Moreover, the Bank suggests that NRS § 21.340 — mentioned by the Bank for what appears

to be the first time in this entire proceeding — can somehow overcome the requirement of Nevada

law that the Bank demonstrate clearly and convincingly that contempt, and especially

imprisonment, is warranted against Mr. Detwiler due to his ability to comply. Tellingly, while the

Bank alleges that this Court can hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt and "commit Mr. Detwiler to prison

under NRS Chapter 22", the Bank ignores entirely the fact that under Nevada's civil contempt

statutes, including without limitation NRS § 22.110, the draconian and extreme punishment of

indefinite imprisonment may only be imposed on an individual where the contempt "consists in

the omission to perform an act which is yet in the power of the person to perform..." Here,

Mr. Detwiler's testimony, and the other evidence in this case, has been grossly misrepresented to

this Court. The truth is, Mr. Detwiler's testimony has been consistent that he never had

involvement with, or ownership of, Vehicles. Moreover, Mr. Detwiler resigned as a manager of

the Company effective September 10, 2019. See Declaration of Edward N. Detwiler, attached as

Exhibit 2 to the Motion, and Mr. Detwiler's letter of resignation, attached hereto as Exhibit 3 to

the Motion.

Not only that, but common sense belies the Bank's abusive accusations — there is no doubt

that Mr. Detwiler never had any ownership interest in the Company or the Vehicles. Why would

he not have turned them over long ago? He has nothing to gain by refusing to turn over the

Vehicles — and as set forth in Mr. Detwiler's forthcoming brief, the Bank has not even shown, nor

can it, that the Vehicles were ever in control of Mr. Detwiler's authority to turn them over.6 There

6 In addition, as set forth more fully in his forthcoming response to the Brief, Mr. Detwiler has absolutely no business
dealings with Mr. Foust, and the records of the entities the Bank cites to in its Brief make that clear by showing that

Page 3 of 8
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can be no basis to hold Mr. Detwiler in contempt, and even if there was, a proceeding to make that

determination would have to take place in a separate department as set forth above.

The Bank's citations to CJS generally and other non-Nevada authorities — while

misconstrued by the Bank as set forth below — do not change the binding Nevada statutory and

case law precedent cited by Mr. Detwiler which demonstrates that there is no grounds to hold Mr.

Detwiler in contempt. Moreover, the Bank's assertions that Mr. Detwiler "has the ability to

comply" to turn over the Vehicles, which can only properly be heard before a separate department

based on Mr. Detwiler's objections as noted above, are also inaccurate:

The Bank falsely asserts — again — that Mr. Detwiler was "represented" by Holland
& Hart. This is not true. Holland & Hart only represented the Company, not Mr.
Detwiler. Therefore, notice of the order requiring the Company to turn over the
Vehicles was not notice to Mr. Detwiler.

2. Counsel for the Bank asserts he wrote to Mr. Detwiler by "regular mail" and email
demanding turnover of the Vehicles. Absent is any return receipt showing Mr.
Detwiler received counsel's communications, and Mr. Detwiler will testify he did
not, in fact, receive them.

3. The Bank asserts that Mr. Detwiler was served with an application for order to show
cause, and he was served with the Order to Show Cause. But the question remains
— so what? Service of these documents in no way proves, or even suggests, that
Mr. Detwiler could turn over the Vehicles!

4. In fact, numerous facts demonstrate unequivocally that Mr. Detwiler could not, in
fact, turn over the Vehicles, including without limitation the following:

a. Mr. Detwiler testified, and the (unauthenticated) transcript of the
Bankruptcy Hearing confirmed, that whatever knowledge he had of vehicles
at all came from the Bank's attorney Mr. Lezei;

b. Mr. Detwiler saw some vehicles at a warehouse in Compton the day before
the bankruptcy hearings, but the Bank has never shown or even provided
any evidence that those vehicles were the same Vehicles the Bank now
seeks;

c. Mr. Detwiler will testify that, contrary to the Bank's false assertions, Mr.
Detwiler never inspected any vehicles, and only knew that some did not run
because some of the vehicles at the warehouse (again, no evidence that those
are the Vehicles the Bank seeks) had their engines next to the vehicles,
which is a fair indication the vehicle is inoperable;

they are not the managers or members of any of the same entities! The assertion they share office space is also false.

Page 4 of 8
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d. Mr. Detwiler will testify that only other vehicles he ever saw were a Yukon
and Mercedes driven by Foust. But again, no indication or evidence from
the Bank that those are even part of the list of Vehicles the Bank seeks, and
Mr. Detwiler will testify they were always in Mr. Foust's possession and he
never inspected them or had reason to do so;

e. The Bank has never even disputed that Mr. Detwiler ever had any ownership
interest in the Company, or the Vehicles, or anything else that would enable
him to turn over the Vehicles;

f. Mr. Detwiler will testify he was never made award of the Vacated Contempt
Order until after he had obtained counsel and the order itself had been
vacated;

g. There are numerous material inconsistencies between the various orders the
Bank has submitted to this Court, themselves extremely problematic to the
Bank's position regarding Mr. Detwiler, but also evincing a clear intent by
the Bank to attempt to extort from Mr. Detwiler payment of some or all of
the judgment against Mr. Foust, under threat of indefinite imprisonment,
giving rise to serious due process concerns, violation of Nevada's anti-
coercion laws, and very likely constituting abuse of process by the Bank
against Mr. Detwiler.

While the Bank's evidence will be properly before another department, it is very clear the

Bank has been extremely fast and loose with the facts, to put it mildly, in its attempt to attack the

easier target, Mr. Detwiler, simply because he has shown up. As necessary, Mr. Detwiler will

provide an affidavit and/or testimony confirming the above, as well as additional bases

demonstrating the Bank's request that he be held in contempt is improper.

Finally, the case law cited by the Bank is inapposite at best. The only Nevada Supreme

Court case cited by the Bank is misrepresented. In fact, that case, In re Determination of Relative

Rights of Claimants & Appropriators of Waters of Humboldt River Stream Sys. & Tributaries, 118

Nev. 901, 903, 59 P.3d 1226, 1227 (2002), involved criminal contempt, not civil, and the Court

that the contempt finding at issue was "an abuse of discretion":

The district court may order that, if a contemnor continues in its contempt, it must
post a bond as security to cover costs incurred as a result of the contempt.
Additionally, the district court has the power to sentence a government official to
jail for criminal contempt committed in an official capacity, but, under the
facts here, it was an abuse of discretion to do so.7 

Unless otherwise stated, all emphases are added to case citations.
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Moreover, the holding involved the National Labor Relations Board and agents thereof

actually on the board, who had direct knowledge of the order at issue and the ability to comply

(which Mr. Detwiler did not). See 1V.L.R.B. v. Sequoia Dist. Council of Carpenters, AFL-CIO, 568

F.2d 628, 634 (9th Cir. 1977) ("Null and Horn concede they knew the order had issued.").

Tellingly, Sequoia District did not involve indefinite imprisonment, was not decided under

Nevada law, and therefore provides no support for the Bank's position. The holding in United

States v. Laurins, 857 F.2d 529 (9th Cir. 1988), is likewise inapplicable as the individual there

indisputably maintained complete control of the company and the ability to comply with the order.

Conversely, Mr. Detwiler repeatedly testified he had no control to turn over the Vehicles (and

would have if he did), and has resigned from the Company well before he knew anything about

the Vacated Contempt Order. The holding in Nikko Materials USA, Inc. v. R.E. Serv. Co., No. C

03-2549 SBA, 2006 WL 1749550, at *1 (N.D. Cal. June 22, 2006) is facially inapplicable as it

involved a "corporation [] under the control of a single corporate officer". See Opposition at p. 3.

The orders in this case submitted by the Bank have found expressly that "Mr. Foust owns and

controls Harry Hildibrand, LLC. He is the sole member; he is a manager also." See Findings

of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment entered on March 8, 2018, on file herein. Yet

now the Bank wants to assert that this was incorrect and Mr. Detwiler, the resigned fonner manager

(never a member), somehow controls the Company. The Bank's willingness to state whatever fits

its current purpose is disturbing, to say the least.

Finally, the Bank cites a few cases regarding whether resignation effectively purges any

possible contempt. None of these cases are Nevada law, and the Bank misstates the holdings,

which support Mr. Detwiler's position. For example, in Inst. of Cetacean Research v. Sea

Shepherd Conservation Soc'y, 774 F.3d 935, 956 (9th Cir. 2014), the court did hold that a

resignation was not effective to shield an individual from contempt. But the Bank leaves out the

pertinent facts. In that case, the board member resigned, but only after he had taken specific

action to directly and deliberately disobey the court order at issue: "It is true that Rieman

lacked control over Sea Shepherd US after he resigned in February 2013. But by that time, he had

already voted to ratify and implement the separation strategy, and an OZT vessel had already

Page 6 of 8
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breached the safety perimeter imposed by our injunction." Conversely, the Bank has not — and

cannot — produce any evidence that Mr. Detwiler did anything whatsoever to deliberately violate

any order by this Court regarding the Vehicles, and the uncontroverted evidence, including Mr.

Detwiler's own undisputed testimony, shows exactly the opposite.

The holding in the unreported Sixth Circuit decision in Williamson v. Recovery Ltd. P'ship,

467 F. App'x 382, 398-99 (6th Cir. 2012) is similarly inapposite as it based on conduct occurring

after the entry of the court's order. ("We affirm as to Director Turner because the district court's

contempt award was based in part on conduct that occurred after entry of the Consent Order in

July 9 2006 but before Cullman resigned on November 28, 2006"). Finally, to the extent the New

York "city court" opinion in Hoffman Beverage Co. v. Forrest Mart Tid Bit Shop, 135 N.Y.S.2d

795, 797-98 (City Ct. 1954) is applicable at all, it serves as the nail in the coffin of the Bank's

argument, so to speak, as it proves that even if it there were some evidence that Mr. Detwiler's

resignation was in bad faith — which there is not because it was not — such a finding would have to

be determined at a separate hearing which, based on Mr. Detwiler's objection, would have to

take place in a different department:

It is the Court's opinion that under the circumstances disclosed here the officer of
the corporate judgment-debtor may not hide behind a special notice of appearance
on the ground either that he individually was not mentioned in the order on the
application, but as Joseph Belson, vicepresident, or on the ground that he had
resigned as a director and vicepresident. In may be possible that facts may be
elicited tending to show that the alleged resignation of the vice-president and
director was made in had [sic] faith or for an improper and illegal purpose. Zeltner
v. Henry Zeltner Brewing Co., 85 App.Div. 387, at page 389, 83 N.Y.S. 366, at
page 368. This may only be done on a hearing or application to punish, not by a
special notice of appearance.

Accordingly, the Bank's Opposition provides no basis for the improper relief it seeks against Mr.

Detwiler, and the Motion should be granted to permit this matter to be assigned to a different

department.

///

///

///
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III. CONCLUSION

For all these reasons, non-party Mr. Detwiler respectfully requests this Court grant the

Motion in its entirety and allow this matter to be transferred to a separate department pursuant to

NRS § 22.030, and grant such other relief as appropriate.

DATED this 30th day of January, 2020.

By

KOLESAR & LEATHAM

BIENOCH WI LIN, ESQ.
V SBN 1028

AMANDA K. BAKER, ESQ.
(NV SBN 15172)
KOLESAR & LEATHAM
400 South Rampart Boulevard, Suite 400
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 362-7800
Facsimile: (702) 362-9472
Email: bwirthlin@klnevada.com
Email: abaker@klnevada.com
Attorneys for Non-party Edward Detwiler
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of Kolesar & Leatham, and that on the 30th day of

January 2020, I caused to be served a true and correct copy of foregoing NON-PARTY EDWARD

DETWILER'S REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR ENTRY OF A PROTECTIVE

ORDER AND CONTINUANCE OF HEARING in the following manner:

(ELECTRONIC SERVICE) Pursuant to Administrative Order 14-2, the above-referenced

document was electronically filed on the date hereof and served through the Notice of Electronic

Filing automatically generated by the Court's facilities to those parties listed on the Court's

Master Service List.

Is/ S. DIANNE POMONIS
An Employee of KOLESAR & LEATHAM

COS - Mx OST Extension (991034-244) Page 1 of 1 PA00686



DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

A-17-760779-F

Foreign Judgment January 30, 2020COURT MINUTES

A-17-760779-F Baker Boyer National Bank, Plaintiff(s)
vs. James Foust, Jr., Defendant(s)

January 30, 2020 01:30 PM Non-Party Edward Detwiler's Motion for Entry of a Protective 
Order and Continuance of Hearing on Order Shortening Time

HEARD BY: 

COURT CLERK:

COURTROOM: Scotti, Richard F. RJC Courtroom 03B

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Brenoch Wirthlin, Esq. present on behalf of Mr. Detwiler. Erik Foley, Esq. also present. Court 
reviewed the history of the case. Mr. Bragonje gave a quick summary of events. Mr. Wirthlin 
advised Mr. Detwiler was local, was willing to appear, and present evidence. Arguments by 
counsel regarding the Motion for Entry of a Protective Order. Upon the Court's inquiry, Mr. 
Bragonje stated he believed Mr. Foust was in Los Angeles and law enforcement there would 
not extradite him on a civil contempt warrant; stated he believed Mr. Foust and Mr. Detwiler 
were working together. Mr. Wirthlin argued regarding the Motion, and requested a week or two 
to conduct a trial. Court noted the trial was broken up into the Detwiler portion and the Foust 
portion. Mr. Bragonje argued regarding the resignation letter of Mr. Detwiler. COURT 
ORDERED, prior Contempt Order could be refiled and reissued by the Court and directed Mr. 
Bragonje to prepare and resubmit the Order. Court stated any motion Mr. Detwiler wished to 
file would not be precluded. COURT FURTHER ORDERED, hearing date SET. COURT 
ORDERED, Mr. Detwiler to surrender his passport to Mr. Wirthlin within 24 hours, and matter 
STAYED through the next hearing date. 

2/12/20 9:00 AM HEARING

PARTIES PRESENT:
John E. Bragonje Attorney for Plaintiff

RECORDER: Amoroso, Brittany

REPORTER:

Page 1 of 1Printed Date: 2/22/2020 January 30, 2020Minutes Date:

Prepared by: Elizabeth Vargas
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Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
1/30/2020 3:16 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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OPPM 
John E. Bragonje 
State Bar No. 9519 
E-mail:jbragonje@lrrc.com 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996 
Tel: 702.949.8200 
Fax: 702.949.8398 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 

BAKER BOYER NATIONAL BANK, a 
Washington corporation, 
 

                     Plaintiff/Judgment Creditor, 
 

vs. 
 
JAMES PATTERSON FOUST, JR., also 
known as James P. Foust, Jr., individually, and 
his marital community, if any, 
 

Defendant/Judgment Debtor. 
 

 Case No.:  A-17-760779-F 
 
Dept. No.: II 
 
 
PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO NON-
PARTY EDWARD DETWILER’S: 
(1) MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM 
CONTEMPT ORDER PURSUANT TO 
NRCP 60(B); (2) MOTION FOR NEW 
TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRCP 59;  
(3) MOTION TO ALTER OR AMEND 
JUDGMENT PURSUANT TO NRCP 52 
AND 59; (4) MOTION FOR 
RECONSIDERATION OF THE 
COURT’S CONTEMPT ORDER; AND 
(5) OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S 
BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF REQUEST TO 
HOLD MR. DETWILER IN CIVIL 
CONTEMPT OF COURT 

 
Hearing Date:  February 12, 2020 
Hearing Time:   8:30 a.m. 
 

INTRODUCTION 

The plaintiff and judgment creditor Baker Boyer National Bank (the “Bank”) opposes the 

referenced motions and requests that they be denied in their entirety. 

This opposition paper will make 28 filings that the Bank has made in support of its years-

long effort to force Mr. Foust and Harry Hildibrand, LLC (“HH”) to surrender the vehicles to 

satisfy the judgment.  This latest motion from Mr. Detwiler, by and large, presents no new 

argument and no new evidence.  The Bank respectfully rests on its prior.  One item of new 

Case Number: A-17-760779-F

Electronically Filed
2/10/2020 3:12 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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evidence—the so-called resignation letter—bears a brief response.  Far from exonerating Mr. 

Detwiler, the emergence of this document further proves Mr. Detwiler’s culpability and the 

appropriateness of this Court’s contempt order against him.   

I. MR. DETWILER TESTIFIED FOR YEARS THAT HE TOOK DIRECTION 
FROM HARRY HILDIBRAND, JR., BUT HE SENT THE ALLEGED 
RESIGNATION LETTER TO MR. FOUST. 

 In the past, Mr. Detwiler attempted to distance himself from Mr. Foust.  Mr. Detwiler 

testified in his deposition and during multiple evidentiary hearings that he took direction in his 

role as HH’s manager from Harry Hildibrand, Jr. only—not Mr. Foust.   

A. Mr. Detwiler First Gave this Testimony at His July, 2018 Deposition. 

Mr. Detwiler first gave such testimony at his July, 2018 deposition: 
 
Q: So in your opinion, who makes the ultimate decisions for Harry Hildibrand? 
 
Mr. Detwiler: Harry Jr., the person. He's the top shareholder, and I don't know if 
he has a proxy for 11 the other two or not. It's like I said, it's -- I'm not really 
involved in the day-to-day business of what they do, and they have so little, you 
know. 

* * * 

Q: Do you -- in your opinion does Jim Foust run Harry Hildibrand? Does he make 
all the decisions for Harry Hildibrand? 
 
Mr. Detwiler: No, sir. No. 
 
Q: That would be Harry Hildibrand Jr. that makes the decisions? 
 
Mr. Detwiler: Yes, sir. To the best of my knowledge when -- if Harry were to call 
me, like he has, and had me do -- and I go do things when Harry asks me to. 

(7/6/18 Dep. E. Detwiler, Ex. 1 hereto, 18:7-14; 18:21-19:4.) 

 Similarly, Mr. Detwiler claimed that three of the children of the late Harry Hildibrand, Sr. 

owned roughly equal shares in HH since their father’s passing in 2010.  (Id. at 28:1-10; 9:12-19.) 
B. Mr. Detwiler Gave the Same Testimony When Examined by His Own 

Attorney in November, 2018. 

 Mr. Detwiler reaffirmed that Harry Hildibrand, Jr. leads HH during the second evidentiary 

hearing before this Court, in November, 2018.  HH’s own attorney, Mr. Joseph Went of the 

Holland & Hart law firm, adduced this evidence: 
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Q: So when you became a manager of Harry Hildibrand LLC, who was 
responsible for issuing instructions to you about Harry Hildibrand LLC business? 
 
Mr. Detwiler: Well, originally it was Senior, and then after his passing it was 
Junior. But there was a long, long lapse in between communications. 
Because there wasn't anything that I was doing on their behalf. It wasn't 
until the coach was missing that -- that I had any involvement in HH for -- 
for a very long time. 
 
Q: At any point in time after you became a manager of Harry 
Hildibrand LLC, did you take instructions from Jim Foust about the 
business of Harry Hildibrand LLC? 
 
Mr. Detwiler: No, sir. 

(11/5/18 Hr’g Trans., Ex. 2 hereto, 22:1-12.)  Mr. Detwiler again repeated his deposition 

testimony to the effect that the children Harry Hildibrand owned roughly one third of the 

company, with Mr. Foust owning a one percent interest.  (Id. at 23:9-16.)   

C. Mr. Detwiler Gave the Same Testimony Again at His Contempt Trial in May, 
2019. 

At the contempt trial, Mr. Detwiler also testified that he had been trying to telephone Harry 

Hildibrand, Jr. to convince him to comply with this Court’s order to turn over the vehicles.  (See 

5/17/19 Hr’g Trans., Ex. 3 hereto, 33:5-24.)  Mr. Detwiler claimed he felt a sense of “loyalty” to 

Harry Hildibrand, Jr. (id. at 37:7-14)—even to the point that he was paying his own expenses to 

fly from Las Vegas to Los Angeles for HH’s bankruptcy proceedings (id. at 37:16-25).  

D. In a Revealing About-Face Mr. Detwiler Allegedly Tendered His Resignation 
to Mr. Foust. 

 After all this, Mr. Detwiler sent the purported resignation letter to James Foust!  (See 

Exhibit 2 Motion.)  We submit this constitutes a new and glaring demonstration of Mr. Detwiler’s 

untruthfulness to the Court.  We are convinced that Harry Hildibrand, Jr. is either not a real person 

or that he was uninvolved.  If he were, Mr. Detwiler would have tendered his alleged resignation 

to the person he repeatedly testified controlled HH—Harry Hildibrand, Jr.   

 Furthermore, in his supporting declaration, Mr. Detwiler states that he sent the resignation 

letter to HH’s attorney “Jim Lizzei at the address the forth on the Letter of Resignation.”  (Exhibit 

1 to Motion, ¶ 4.)  This statement makes no sense because the letter is not addressed to Mr. Lezzei.  
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The letter does not include the name Jim Lezzei anywhere.  The letter was supposedly sent to 

James Foust at his home address in the Los Angeles area.  (See Exhibit 2 to Motion.)  Even if the 

resignation letter were addressed to Jim Lezzie, that would only further point up Mr. Detwiler’s 

connection to Mr. Foust.  This Court found that Jim Lezzie represented HH in the bankruptcy and 

that he had submitted a pro hac vice application in which he described himself as “a long time 

[sic] associate of James Paterson Foust” who had “served as counsel to Mr. Foust on previous 

matters.”  (1/9/19 Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Final Judgment, at Finding of Fact ¶ 

19, on file herein.)   

II. MR. DETWILER PORTRAYS MR. FOUST AS A STRANGER, BUT THE 
RECORD SHOWS OTHERWISE. 

Every time Mr. Detwiler has the chance to submit arguments to the Court, he reveals 

additional inconsistencies in his testimony.  These men are not, as Mr. Detwiler insists, strangers.  

The more time that passes the more it appears that Mr. Foust and Mr. Detwiler are working 

together—perhaps even to move assets outside the country to evade this Court’s orders.   

A. Mr. Detwiler Apparently Now Argues that Mr. Foust, not HH, Had Possession 
of the Vehicles. 

At the last hearing Mr. Detwiler’s new counsel argued that Mr. Detwiler believed that Mr. 

Foust owned a warehouse holding the vehicles.  This statement contradicts Mr. Detwiler’s 

bankruptcy hearing testimony; there he testified that HH or StarDust Classic rented a warehouse 

located at 901 West Allondra in Compton, California, and that the vehicles were stored there.  

(Exhibit 3 to 11/5/18 Hr’g, at control numbers Baker 83-85.)  Mr. Detwiler’s new counsel’s 

argument underscores a further inconsistency in Mr. Detwiler’s testimony. 

B. Nevada Secretary of State Filings Show that Messrs. Foust and Detwiler Use 
the Same Office Space. 

Mr. Detwiler has testified that he spends his time developing a luxury resort in Roatan, 

Honduras.  He has stated his intention to live in Honduras either permanently or for an extended 

period.  At his deposition Mr. Detwiler adamantly denied that Mr. Foust had any interest in this 

venture—“absolutely not” were his exact words.  (7/6/18 Dep. E. Detwiler, Ex. 1 hereto, 19:17-
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24.)  But Mr. Foust claimed a $721,905.62 interest in “Roatan West bay” as an asset on a balance 

sheet submitted to the Bank in January, 2016, before this judgment was domesticated in Nevada.  

(Exhibit 5 to 11/5/18 Hr’g, at control numbers Baker 28.)  Mr. Detwiler is a manager for Nai’a 

Resorts, LLC, the entity he testified owns the Roatan venture.  Mr. Foust is the manager for JPF 

Enterprises, LLC.  Both men give the same address, 10120 South Eastern Avenue, Suite 300, 

Henderson, as their official addresses.  (See Exhibit 5 to 1/24/20 Brief in Support of Continuing 

Request to Hold Edward N. Detwiler in Civil Contempt of Court, on file herein.)  The two seem to 

be sharing operating resources.        

III. CONCLUSION 

This Court previously found that “Mr. Foust, HH, and StarDust Classic have been agents 

of one another with respect to any past action involving the cars at issue in these proceedings 

. . . .”  (Id. at Conclusion ¶ 3.)  HH is a real entity, organized under Montana law.  Mr. Detwiler is 

the manager of the entity—and was at all relevant times even if we assume the seemingly bogus 

resignation letter is legitimate.  He has and has had the ability to comply for the reasons already 

argued.  Mr. Detwiler refuses because, as it is increasingly clear, he conspires with Mr. Foust 

rather than taking direction from Harry Hildibrand, Jr.  For these reasons, we request that the court 

deny this motion in its entirety.    

Dated this 10th day of February, 2020. 

 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
 
 
By: /s/ John E. Bragonje  

John E. Bragonje  (SBN.: 9519) 
3993 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV 89169-5996 
 

      Attorneys for Plaintiff Baker Boyer National Bank 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Rule 5(b), I hereby certify that on this date, I electronically filed and served the 

foregoing document entitled “PLAINTIFF’S OPPOSITION TO NON-PARTY EDWARD 

DETWILER’S: (1) MOTION FOR RELIEF FROM CONTEMPT ORDER PURSUANT TO 

NRCP 60(B); (2) MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL PURSUANT TO NRCP 59; (3) MOTION TO 

ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT PURSUANT TO NRCP 52 AND 59; (4) MOTION FOR 

RECONSIDERATION of the COURT’S CONTEMPT ORDER; AND (5) OPPOSITION TO 

PLAINTIFF’S BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF REQUEST TO HOLD MR. DETWILER IN CIVIL 

CONTEMPT OF COURT” through the Court’s electronic filing system on all parties on the 

Court’s e-service list.  
 

Michael D. Mazur, Esq. 
MAZUR & BROOKS  
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 
2355 Red Rock Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, NV 89146 
Attorneys for Defendant James Patterson Foust, Jr. 
 
Brenoch Wirthlin 
KOLESAR & LEATHAM 
400 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 400 
Las Vegas, NV 89145 
 
The Following Served via U.S. Mail: 
 
HARRY HILDIBRAND, LLC 
c/o Registered Agent  
Jared S. Heggen 
3011 American Way 
Missoula, MT 59808 
 
HARRY HILDIBRAND, LLC 
c/o Registered Agent  
Jared S. Heggen 
P.O. Box 16270 
Missoula, MT 59808 
 

DATED this 10th  day of February, 2020. 
 
/s/ Luz Horvath  
An employee of Lewis Roca Rothgerber Christie LLP 
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Baker Boyer National Bank v. Foust, Jr.

Deposition of:
Edward Detwiler

July 6, 2018

www.westernreportingservices.com
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7/6/2018 Deposition of Edward Detwiler
Baker Boyer National Bank v. Foust, Jr.

www.westernreportingservices.com
Western Reporting Services, Inc.     (702) 474-6255

9

1 came into town, and I sold them 1300 homes in 11

2 months.

3             And so I'm very good at what I do, and

4 that was the whole idea behind transitioning

5 Hildibrand from automobiles into real estate.  And

6 with the market turning like it did in '8 and going

7 like this, never got off the ground.  Never did any

8 real estate transactions.  I would have liked to have

9 done for Hildibrand and Harry what I did for Colony.

10 Just never got around to being able to get it off the

11 ground.

12      Q.     So you knew Mr. Hildibrand, the name sake,

13 of Harry Hildibrand, LLC?

14      A.     I spoke with him.  I've never met him.

15      Q.     Is he dead now?

16      A.     He is.

17      Q.     When did he --

18      A.     He passed in 2010, I believe.

19      Q.     I want to follow up on some of the things

20 that you said.  You gave me the impression that the

21 business of Harry Hildibrand was cars, and it was

22 intended that that business transition into real

23 estate.

24             So beginning with what you said first, can

25 you give me your understanding of what the nature of
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7/6/2018 Deposition of Edward Detwiler
Baker Boyer National Bank v. Foust, Jr.

www.westernreportingservices.com
Western Reporting Services, Inc.     (702) 474-6255
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1      Q.     Thank you.  I know that's a little bit

2 tedious but...

3      A.     Yes.  Yes.

4      Q.     When did you ask Harry Hildibrand Jr. for

5 the contracts?

6      A.     I have not.

7      Q.     So in your opinion, who makes the ultimate

8 decisions for Harry Hildibrand?

9      A.     Harry Jr., the person.  He's the top

10 shareholder, and I don't know if he has a proxy for

11 the other two or not.  It's like I said, it's -- I'm

12 not really involved in the day-to-day business of what

13 they do, and they have so little, you know.

14             In retrospect in 2009 or '10 when we

15 weren't going to move towards real estate

16 acquisitions, it would have been in my best interest

17 to resign because there isn't anything for me to do.

18 And because I didn't, now I'm here today because of a

19 motor coach that I thought we could make a quick buck

20 on.  It's turned into a nightmare so...

21      Q.     Do you -- in your opinion does Jim Foust

22 run Harry Hildibrand?  Does he make all the decisions

23 for Harry Hildibrand?

24      A.     No, sir.  No.

25      Q.     That would be Harry Hildibrand Jr. that
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7/6/2018 Deposition of Edward Detwiler
Baker Boyer National Bank v. Foust, Jr.
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1 makes the decisions?

2      A.     Yes, sir.  To the best of my knowledge

3 when -- if Harry were to call me, like he has, and had

4 me do -- and I go do things when Harry asks me to.

5 But the only thing he's ever asked me to do is, hey,

6 go get my coach back.  So I did, and I'm sitting here

7 now.

8      Q.     So did you hire the counsel that's here

9 with you today, or did Harry Hildibrand, the entity,

10 hire the counsel?

11      A.     Harry Hildibrand hired the counsel.  Their

12 office is about four minutes from my house at 817

13 Windhook Street.

14      Q.     So you personally haven't been paying any

15 of the legal fees for this?

16      A.     I have not.

17      Q.     Now, when I talked with Jim Foust I talked

18 to him at some length on two different occasions.  He

19 has mentioned a development project in Roatan.  Does

20 that have anything to do with Harry Hildibrand?

21      A.     Absolutely not.

22      Q.     Is Mr. Foust involved in this Roatan

23 project?

24      A.     Absolutely not.

25      Q.     What is the project?
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